
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Monday, 31 January 2022 
 
 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 8 February 2022 
beginning at 

6:15 pm 
in the 

Via Microsoft Teams Live 

https://bit.ly/3KY6YBm  

 
 
TO: Councillor Steve Holes (Chair) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Anne Buckley 
Councillor Tina Campbell 
Councillor Judith Grajewski 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
 

Councillor Adam Manning 
Councillor David Pragnell 
Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Bruce Tennent 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 023 
8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 

1

https://bit.ly/3KY6YBm
https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Public Participation  
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2022. 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

5.   Regulation of Investigating Powers Policy (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

6.   Write Off Of Irrecoverable Debts 2020/21 (Pages 13 - 20) 
 

7.   Capital and Treasury Management Strategy (Pages 21 - 74) 
 

8.   Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring Statement (Qtr3) (Pages 75 - 86) 
 

9.   Repairs and Renewals Report (Pages 87 - 94) 
 

10.   Asset Management Strategy (Pages 95 - 102) 
 

11.   Verbal Updates from Members Representing Strategic Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) / Procurement Executive Group (PEG)  
 

12.   Action List (Pages 103 - 104) 
 

13.   Cabinet Forward Plan (Pages 105 - 110) 
 

14.   A&R Work Programme (Pages 111 - 112) 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 8 March 2022 at 6:15 pm 

TBC 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


 

 

3



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 11 January 2022  (6:15 pm – 7:13 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Holes (Chair); Councillors Bourne, Campbell, Irish and Park 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Broomfield 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Grajewski, Manning 
and Tennent 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

112. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

113. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2021 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

114. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

115. AUDIT RESULTS REPORT (EY) 
 
Janet Dawson, Partner EY, Simon Mathers, Senor Manager EY, and Katie 
Lean, Assistant Manager EY, introduced the Draft Audit Results Report 
2020/21.  
 
The audit was designed to express an opinion on the 2020/21 financial 
statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the report be noted. 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

 
116. AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT (EY) 

 
Janet Dawson, Partner EY, Simon Mathers, Senor Manager EY, and Katie 
Lean, Assistant Manager EY, introduced the Draft Auditor’s Annual 
Report, 
 
As the external auditors they are required to issue an annual audit letter to 
the Council following completion of their audit procedures for the year 
ended 31 March 2022. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the report be noted. 
 

117. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
Item 7 on the Agenda (Annual Governance Statement) was heard after 
Item 8 on the Agenda (Annual Statement of Accounts 2020/21). 
 
The Executive Head of Governance introduced the report. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Committee APPROVED the Annual Governance Statement 
2020/21.  
 

118. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 
 
Item 8 on the Agenda (Annual Statement of Accounts 2020/21) was heard 
ahead of Item 7 on the Agenda (Annual Governance Statement). 
 
The Executive Head of Finance and Housing Programme introduced the 
Statement of Accounts 2020/21. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Committee APPROVED the Statement of Accounts 2020/21.  
 

119. ACTION LIST 
 
The Committee considered the Action List, which set out the recent 
decisions and subsequent actions arising from the Committee.  
 
It was AGREED - 
 
That the Action List be noted and updated for the next meeting. 

6



3 
 

 

 
120. CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 
The Committee considered the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the current Forward Plan be noted. 
 

121. A&R WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee considered its current Work Programme. 
  
It was AGREED - 
  
That the Work Programme be noted. 
 

122. EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
(1) That, in pursuance of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; 
and 

 
(2) That, in pursuance of the public interest test, the public 

interest in disclosing the information contained in the following 
item of business was outweighed by the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption. 

 
123. PROPERTY PORTFOLIO UPDATE 

 
There was a discussion around the ethical standards and Code of Practice 
used in relation to the property portfolio and it was agreed that the Chief 
Finance Officer would have a discussion with the Strategic Planning 
Manager with regards to whether climate change could be incorporated 
into the Code. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the report be noted. 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 8 February 2022  

RIPA ANNUAL REPORT AND REVIEW OF RIPA POLICY 

Report of the Legal Services Manager 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee note: 
1) the contents of this report and; 
2) that the Council has not made use of its RIPA powers since the previous 

inspection by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner in 2019. 
 

Summary 
The Regulations of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (“the 2000 Act”) (RIPA) regulates the 
use of investigatory powers by public bodies including local authorities. 

The Council has previously adopted a policy for the reference of officers relating to the 
exercise of its powers under the 2000 Act (“the RIPA Policy”). The RIPA Policy requires 
elected members to set the Council’s Strategy and to consider internal reports on the use 
of the 2000 Act on a periodic basis. 

The RIPA policy is being currently reviewed to ensure it up to date with legislative changes 
and policy changes. The Council has now received notification that a desktop inspection is 
to be carried out in the early part of this year by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s 
Office. Following this inspection the revised policy will be brought back to this Committee 
to adopt  

Focus for Scrutiny 

To note that there has been no use of RIPA powers since the previous inspection in 2019. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to the Council’s surveillance powers which may be used to 
achieve objectives relating to having an Excellent Environment for All, Tackling 
Deprivation and Enabling Health and Wellbeing (Corporate Plan 2015-2025). The 
report meets the need for sound and robust policy-making and governance and 

9

Agenda Item 5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

governance, which underpins all the Council’s statutory functions and Corporate 
Plan objectives. 

Introduction 

2. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) sets out the ways in 
which the Council can lawfully carry out investigations when it wants to use 
surveillance techniques. There are 3 types of surveillance techniques available to 
local authorities: 

 the acquisition and disclosure of communications data (such as telephone 
billing information or subscriber details); 

 directed surveillance (covert surveillance of individuals in public places); and 
 covert human intelligence sources (CHIS) (such as the deployment of 

undercover officers) 
 

3. Local authorities may use covert techniques where they are responsible for 
enforcing the law in respect of environmental crime; consumer scams; loan 
sharks; taxi cab regulation; underage sale of knives, alcohol, and tobacco; and 
the employment of minors. CHIS and directed surveillance techniques are used 
in test purchase operations to investigate the sale of tobacco, alcohol, and other 
age-restricted products. Of course, not all these functions are within the scope of 
activities carried out by a district council.  
 

4. Local authorities may only use covert surveillance for the prevention and 
detection of crime, and only in those cases where the offence under investigation 
is subject to a term of imprisonment of 6 months or more. In addition, since the 
Protection of Freedom Act 2012 came into force, all local authorities must get 
approval from a magistrate before they undertake any form of covert surveillance. 
 

5. The Home Office’s codes of practice relating to the 2000 Act recommends that 
elected members have oversight of the use of these powers on a regular basis. 

Report on exercise of powers under 2000 Act 

6. As a matter of best practice, elected members of an authority should review the 
authority’s use of RIPA at least once a year. 

7. The Council has not exercised its powers under the 2000 Act during the past 
twelve months or since the last inspection report on 4 February 2019. 

8. The relevant authorising officers for RIPA at Eastleigh Borough Council have 
received their annual training, this was completed in November 2021. Training for 
investigating officers who need knowledge of RIPA was also completed in 
November 2021 

9. The Legal Services Manager is the designated Senior Responsible Officer. 

 

 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Inspection by the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office 

10. The Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (“IPCO”) is responsible for 
overseeing the use of covert surveillance by specified bodies including Eastleigh 
Borough Council. 

11. IPCO carry out inspections on a periodic basis which is typically every three 
years to review public authorities’ use of their powers under the 2000 Act. 

12. The Council was previously inspected by Inspector, Ges Horne. This was carried 
out remotely by way of a desktop-based documentary inspection and the report 
was issued on 4 February 2019. 

13. The Commissioner was satisfied that the information provided had demonstrated 
a satisfactory level of compliance and advised that it was anticipated that the next 
inspection would be a physical inspection in three years’ time when it is next due. 

14. The 2019 report stated that the Council was found to have a clear and 
comprehensive RIPA policy which is supported by refresher training. There were 
some recommendations made which related to the RIPA policy, which required 
the policy to be revised and amended. 

15. The amendments to the policy were – 

a. The policy is amended to clarify that authorisations for preventing disorder 
cannot be authorised unless it involves a criminal offence punishable by a 
maximum term of six months imprisonment. 

b. Where there is reference to trespass, it is to be amended to make it clear 
to officers that local authorities are not empowered to conduct property 
interference under the Police Act 1997. 

c. Substitute reference to Surveillance Commissioners with Judicial 
Commissioners. 

d. Amend the policy to reflect the principles outlined in Section 3.13 of the 
Covert Surveillance and Property Interference Code of Practice in relation 
to online privacy settings and social media use by ensuring appropriate 
safeguards are in place. 

16. It is also to be noted that any suspected errors must be notified by the Senior 
Responsible Officer (SRO) to the Investigatory Powers Commissioner as soon as 
reasonably practicable, and no later than ten working days after the error has 
been identified. 

17. Staff were also reminded of the use of social media use for investigations and 
that it must be used in a controlled, auditable, and well understood manner. A 
social media policy is being formulated currently. 

18. The Council has recently received notification that we are to receive a desktop-
based inspection in the next few weeks.  This will involve the Inspector being 
provided with the relevant documents. 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

19. The current RIPA policy is being reviewed. The draft policy will be sent to the 
Inspector for comment and following any amendments that may be advised or 
suggested following this, the revised RIPA policy will then be brought back to 
members for adoption. 

Financial Implications 

20. There are no financial implications from this report. 

Risk Assessment 

21. The Council could be in breach of the law if fails to follow its policies and 
procedures. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

22. It is considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not need to be 
addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been carried out. 
It is a report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. 
 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

23. There are no climate change or environmental implications within this report. 

Conclusion 

24. This report is to note the Council’s use of RIPA powers from the date of the last 
inspection report and that a revised Policy will be presented to this Committee for 
adoption following the IPCO inspection. 

 

NICKI MOORHOUSE 
SENIOR CHARTERED LEGAL EXECUTIVE 

Date: 21 January 2022 
Contact Officer: Nicki Moorhouse  
Tel No: 023 8068 815 
e-mail: nicki.moorhouse@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this report 
or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works or documents 
which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* List Background Papers or state None. 
 

12



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 8 February 2022  

CABINET 

Thursday, 17 February 2022 

WRITE OFF OF IRRECOVERABLE DEBTS 2020/21 

COUNCIL TAX, NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES, HOUSING 
BENEFIT & SUNDRY DEBTORS 

Report of the Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that Audit & Resources Committee note the contents of this 
report and make recommendations to Cabinet as appropriate. 
 
It is recommended that Cabinet:   

(1) consider any recommendations from Audit & Resources Committee; 

(2) note debts of £5,000 or under approved for write off by the Executive Head of 
Finance and Housing Programme with a net total of £2,123.03; 

(3) note debts of £5,000 or under, and debts relating to bankruptcy or liquidation 
proceedings, approved for write off by the Corporate Director (CFO) with a net 
total of £182,922.25; 

(4) note debts of £5,000 or under, approved for write off by the Corporate Director 
(CFO) totalling £51,566.06; and 

(5) approve the write-off of debts in respect of one debtor in excess of £5,000 
totalling £187,727.00 relating to National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR); 
 

 

Summary 
 
The Executive Head of Finance and Housing Programme and the Corporate Director 
(CFO) have exercised delegated powers to write-off certain debts below £5,000. 

Approval is sought for one debt over £5,000 to be written off. 

13

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Focus for Scrutiny 

Approval is sought for one debt over £5,000 to be written off. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Statutory authority under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 has been 
exercised and the delegated powers stated in Financial Regulations 6.6.1 utilised. 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to the financial management and sustainability of the 
Council, operating in a business-like way which underpins the delivery of all of 
the Council’s Corporate Plan (2015-2025) objectives.  The issues detailed in 
the report do not represent any significant variance in the Council’s delivery to 
meet these objectives. 

Introduction 

2. Councillors are aware that the Executive Head of Finance and Housing 
Programme is authorised within the Constitution’s Scheme of Delegation to 
write-off debts of £5,000 or less in respect of housing benefits, council tax and 
business rates respectively.  The Chief Financial Officer is authorised to write-
off debts of £5,000 or less and debts over this amount where bankruptcy or 
liquidation proceedings have been instituted.  Anything outside of these limits 
should be approved by Cabinet. 

3. To provide some context, in 2020/21 the net value of sundry debtors raised 
was £27,219,925 with a collection rate in year of 83%.  Councillors are 
reminded that the fact that a debt has been written off does not prevent action 
to recover the debt subsequently being taken if a debtor is traced, provided 
such action is not statute barred through lapse of time.  The process for debt 
collection is regularly reviewed to ensure that income to the Council can be 
maximised. 

4. As previously reported there is an increasing number of Debt Relief Orders 
(DRO) and Individual Voluntary Arrangements (IVA) being entered into and 
therefore the figures in relation to these cases have been included with 
bankruptcy and liquidation totals as there are similar restrictions on collecting 
these debts. 

5. This write-off report is produced annually and details of the write-offs are 
given in the following paragraphs of this report. 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Summary of Revenue and Benefits Debts under £5,000 or in 
Bankruptcy/Liquidation/Debt Relief Order/IVAs 

6. Detailed below is a summary of written-off debts authorised by the Executive 
Head of Finance and Housing Programme and in cases of bankruptcy and 
liquidation by the Chief Financial Officer. 

DEBTS £5,000 or less 
and Credits 
Written Off  

 
 

(£) 

Bankruptcy 
Liquidation 
Debt Relief 
Orders & 

IVAs 
 (£) 

TOTAL 
 
 
 
 

(£) 

Reversed 
or 

Recovered 
Debts  

 
(£) 

NET TOTAL  
 
 
 
 

(£) 

COUNCIL TAX 
Amount (£) (inc 
costs) 

 
£ 12,174.24    

 
£91,918.47  

 
£104,092.71 

 
-£14,276.72 

 
£89,815.99  

No. of Accounts 103 212 315 43 358 

NNDR 
Amount (£) 
(inc costs) 

 
£8,999.33 

 
£69,830.21 

 
£78,829.54 

 
-£32,912.30 

 
£45,917.24 

No of Accounts 25 23 48 13 61 

HOUSING 
BENEFITS 
Amount (£) (inc 
costs & interest) 

 
 

£2,123.03 

 
 

£0.00  

 
 

£2,123.03 

 
 

£0.00 

 
 

£2,123.03 

No. of debtors.   
3 0 3 0 3 

TOTALS 
Amount (£)  

(inc costs) 

£23,296.60 £161,748.68 £185,045.28 -£47,189.02 £137,856.26 

 

Summary of Sundry Debtors under £5,000 

7. Detailed below is a summary of written-off debts authorised by the Chief 
Financial Officer. 

DEBTS £5,000 or less 
and Credits 
Written Off  

 
 

(£) 

Reversed 
or 

Recovered 
Debts  

 
(£) 

TOTAL  
 
 
 
 

(£) 

SUNDRY 
DEBTORS 
Amount (£) (inc 
costs) 

 
£51,566.06    

 
0 

 
£51,566.06 

No. of Debtors 61 0 61 

 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Debts Over £5,000 

8. In addition to the above debts approval is sought to write-off the following debt 
above £5,000 in relation to NNDR.  This debt is detailed below. 

 

NDR 

Reference No 
& Area 

Amount (£) 

(including 
costs) 

Reason 

NDR Account 
Ref:  Redacted 

£187,727.00 

 

The debt relates to a property with a 
rateable value of £199,000 for a liable 
period of 19 months.   

The Council were recovering against the 
previous business rate payer whom were 
liable for the past 18 years.  While 
recovery processes were undertaken 
against the occupant they continued to 
engage with the council and entered into a 
number of payment arrangements to clear 
the arrears. As a result of the previous 
companies continued contact and 
payments there was nothing to indicate 
they were no longer liable for the rates.  

The agreed payment arrangements 
ceased and subsequent enforcement visits 
noted a new company had been in 
occupation. This resulted in the council 
having to reflect the correct liable party.  
Back dated bills were issued but the 
company were no longer trading and 
inactive with no assets.  

Throughout this period, all recovery action 
processes were followed.  The council 
relies on business rate payers to confirm 
when they are no longer liable for 
business rates and it is extremely 
uncommon that a business would not 
inform the council at the time 

 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Performance against Previous Year 

9. One of the key areas of effective debt monitoring is to look back on the 
previous year to assess how the debt portfolio has been managed.   
Comparator tables follow: 

Council Tax, NNDR, Housing Benefits 

Debts under £5k 
and liquidation 

2019/20 2020/21 

Council Tax 220,281.02 89,815.99 

NNDR 163,968.05 45,917.24 

Housing Benefits 13,889.10 2,123.03 

 

 

Debts over £5k 2019/20 2020/21 

NNDR & Council 
Tax 

5,243.75 187,727.00 

Housing Benefits - - 

 

Sundry Debtors 

Debts under £5k 2019/20 2020/21 

Sundry Debtors 107,027.30 51,566.06 

 

Debts over £5k 2019/20 2020/21 

Sundry Debtors 39,350.38 - 

 

10. The comparison shows the value of debts under £5,000 being written off have 
significantly decreased in all services from 2019/20 to 2020/21.  The value of 
debts over £5,000 has greatly increased due to a high value NNDR write off. 

11. The decrease in Council Tax debts being written off is the result of the 
extensive review of debts in 2019/20.  This resulted in a high level of historic 
debts being written off.  The 2020/21 total is comparable with the amount 

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

written off in 2018/19.  There are no Council Tax debts over £5,000 to be 
written off. 

12. NNDR debts under £5,000 being written off have decreased, mainly due to 
Central Government introducing Covid 19 rate relief schemes which reduced 
most business rate liabilities to zero in 2020/21.  There was one high value 
write off over £5,000.  

13. Housing Benefit debts being written off reduced due to more effective use of 
recovery tools to successfully collect outstanding debt. 

14. The decrease in Sundry Debtor debts being written off follows a review of 
aged debts.  Many of these are being repaid on instalment plans resulting in 
fewer debts to be written off.  There are no debts over £5,000 proposed for 
write off. 

Financial Implications 

15. The financial implications of write-offs for Council Tax and Housing Benefit 
debts falls on the General Fund Revenue Account and every reasonable effort 
to recover debts is made before this action is taken.  There is already a 
provision in the statement of accounts for bad debts so this does not 
represent an additional cost to the General Fund Revenue Account. 

16. National Non Domestic Rate Debts that are written off are offset against the 
payments made in relation to the business rate retention scheme and 
therefore 40% of written off debts falls on the Borough’s Council Tax Payers. 

17. All amounts shown in this report are net of VAT.  Bad debt relief can be 
claimed within 4 years and 6 months of the invoice supply date so VAT can 
usually be recovered.  In 20/21 there are two invoices ineligible for bad debt 
relief where the total VAT of £237 cannot be reclaimed.  

Risk Assessment 

18. With any debt collection facility the risk of not taking full recovery action prior 
to writing off debts leads to bad publicity and more customers failing to pay 
the amounts owed leading to an increase in Council Tax for the Borough. 

19. Staff within both Revenue & Benefits and Case Management continually 
monitor debts to ensure that they are collected in the most efficient and 
economical manner and only written off where all means of recovery have 
been exhausted. 

20. Debt and debt recovery is regularly monitored across all areas of the Council 
and there is a risk that levels of unrecoverable debt may increase due to the 
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic on both businesses and individuals. 

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

21. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is a 
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. Therefore it is 
considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not need to be 
addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been carried 
out. 
 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

22. There is no impact to climate change or the environment for this report. 
 

Conclusion 

23. The Council’s Financial Regulations currently delegates authority to the 
Executive Head of Finance and Housing Programme to write off debts not 
exceeding £5,000 provided the Executive Head of Finance and Housing 
Programme is satisfied that all appropriate recovery action has been pursued.  
The debts detailed in this report have all been assessed on an individual basis 
and are now considered irrecoverable, as any further recovery action would 
be counter-productive and uneconomical. 

24. The Council’s Financial Regulations currently delegates authority to the Chief 
Financial Officer to write off debts not exceeding £5,000 and debts where 
bankruptcy or liquidation proceedings have been instituted.  Should the 
circumstances for any of these debts change, the write off can be reversed 
and sums recovered.  The debts detailed in this report have all been assessed 
on an individual basis and are now considered irrecoverable, as any further 
recovery action would be counter-productive and uneconomical.   

 

SARAH KING 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 
Date: 24 January 2022 
Contact Officer: Mark Reed/Declan Kelly/Kerrie Thomas 
Tel No: 023 8068 8075/8047/8326 
e-mail: mark.reed@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 declan.kelly@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 kerrie.thomas@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

19



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

* List Background Papers or state None. 
 

20



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 8 February 2022  

CABINET 

Thursday, 17 February 2022 

COUNCIL 

Thursday, 24 February 2022 

CAPITAL, INVESTMENT AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY 

Report of the Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommendation(s) 

For Audit and Resources: 

 
(1) It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee note the Capital, 

Investment and Treasury Management Strategies making any 
recommendations to Cabinet as appropriate 

For Cabinet: 

(2) recommend to Council to approve the Capital Strategy at Appendix 1 

(3) recommend to Council to approve the Treasury Management Strategy at 
Appendix 2 

(4) recommend to Council to approve the Investment Strategy at Appendix 3 

(5) recommend to Council to approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
Statement at Appendix 2A 

(6) recommend to Council to approve the Prudential Indicators at Appendix 2B 

For Council: 

(7) approve the Capital Strategy at Appendix 1 

(8) approve the Treasury Management Strategy at Appendix 2 

(9) approve the Investment Strategy at Appendix 3 

21

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

(10) approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement at Appendix 2A 

(11) approve the Prudential Indicators at appendix 2B 

 

Summary 
 
The Capital, Investment and Treasury Management Strategies set out the long-term 
context in which capital expenditure decisions are made and gives due consideration to 
both the risk and reward of these decisions and the impact on the achievement of priority 
objectives.  

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 15 of the Local Government Act 2003.  

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

Strategic Implications  

2. This report relates to all the objectives in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2015- 
2025 as it supports the Council’s ability to fund capital and revenue projects 
and services. The approach recommended continues to build on the Council’s 
previous success in this respect, by achieving a high level of rewards for 
residents in terms of service objectives supported by a strong financial 
position, whilst still managing the appropriate level of risk carefully as detailed 
in the report and appendices. 

Introduction 

3. These strategies give a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, 
financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local 
services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the 
implications for future financial sustainability. The Strategies can be found at 
Appendices 1, 2 & 3. 

Financial Implications 

4. The Financial Implications of each strategy are laid out in each Strategic 
Document. 

Risk Assessment 

5. The Council seeks to minimise risk whilst maximising the financial return from 
its investments/borrowing portfolio. Risk is pro-actively managed with advice 
from Arlingclose (the Council’s treasury advisors) and all major decisions 
being made by the Treasury Management Group. The Finance team carry out 
their duties in a controlled manner to ensure that all of the Council’s 

22



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with these 
strategies. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

6. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because It is a 
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. Therefore it is 
considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not need to be 
addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been carried 
out. 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

7. In May 2019 a Consultation Response was submitted to Cabinet regarding 
HCC Pension Fund’s Responsible Investment Policy. Where relevant, the 
same principles outlined in that response will be applied to Capital, Investment 
and Treasury decisions carried out by Eastleigh Borough Council. 

 

Conclusion 

8. The Council is required to approve a Capital, Investment and Treasury 
Management Strategy each financial year which includes an overview of 
Capital Financing, Treasury Management and Investments. The report also 
includes the approval of the Prudential Indicators (Appendix 2B) and MRP 
statement (Appendix 2A). 

 

SARAH KING 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Date: 26/01/2022 
Contact Officer: Tom Andrews 
Tel No: 02380 688259  
e-mail: tom.andrews@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 8 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* List Background Papers or state None. 
 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Capital 
Strategy Report 
2022/23 

 

25



 2 

Contents 
 
Strategic Implications ....................................................................................... 3 

Background ...................................................................................................... 3 

Capital Expenditure .......................................................................................... 3 

Table 1 - Estimates of Capital Expenditure ...................................................... 3 

Governance of Capital Expenditure ................................................................. 4 

Financing of Capital Expenditure ..................................................................... 4 

Table 2 - Capital financing ............................................................................... 4 

Table 3 – Repayment of borrowing .................................................................. 5 

Table 4 - Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement .................................... 5 

Asset Management .......................................................................................... 5 

Treasury Management ..................................................................................... 6 

Table 5 - Net Borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement .................... 6 

Table 6 - Authorised limit and Operational Boundary for External Borrowing .. 7 

Investments ..................................................................................................... 7 

Table 7 - Treasury management investments .................................................. 7 

Property Purchases ......................................................................................... 8 

Revenue Budget Implications .......................................................................... 9 

Table 8 - Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream ....................... 10 

Table 9 - Revenue Surplus from Capital Financing........................................ 10 

Knowledge and Skills ..................................................................................... 10 

 

 

  

26



 3 

Strategic Implications 

 
This report relates to all the objectives in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-
2025 as it supports the Council’s ability to fund capital and revenue projects 
and services.  The approach recommended continues to build on the 
Council’s previous success in this respect, by achieving a high level of 
rewards for residents in terms of service objectives supported by a strong 
financial position, whilst still managing the appropriate level of risk carefully as 
detailed in the report and appendices. 
 

Background 

 
This strategy gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital 
financing and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of local 
services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the 
implications for future financial sustainability.  
 

Capital Expenditure 

Capital expenditure is where the Council spends money on assets, such as 
property or vehicles that have a usable life of more than one year.  In local 
government this includes spending on assets owned by the Council, by other 
bodies, as well as loans and grants to other bodies enabling them to buy or 
improve assets.  The Council has some limited discretion on what counts as 
capital expenditure, for example, the Council can choose not to capitalise 
spend under the value of £10k, and instead charge these as a revenue cost in 
year. 
 
In 2021/22 the Council is planning capital expenditure of £66m as 
summarised below: 

 
Table 1 - Estimates of Capital Expenditure 

 

Programme Area 
2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Climate and Environmental 
Infrastructure 

6,487 
1,341 

629 
20,403 

1,500 
5,363 

0 
690 

0 
2,856 

LAC’s 2,722 6,515 7,072 0 0 

Leisure 43 108 0 0 0 

Urban Regeneration 3,758 3,213 6,710 7,610 2,000 

IT 337 250 450 509 0 

Housing 36,613 34,314 30,892 30,100 46,175 

Total General Fund Services 51,301 65,432 51,987 38,909 51,031 

 
 

27



 4 

Governance of Capital Expenditure 

The current Community Investment Programme (CIP) is attached at Appendix 
1A.  The CIP consists of capital schemes identified by Councillors and Staff 
as being of benefit to the community.  Schemes are approved in year by 
Cabinet, or if it is a scheme that falls under a Local Area, then approval can 
be made by the relevant Local Area Committee (LAC). 
 
All projects are monitored by the Project Management Office (PMO), ensuring 
that projects are started in a controlled way and are reported upon regularly. 

 
For each proposed scheme, alignment to Corporate Strategic aims is checked 
before commitment to spend is made.  This is done using a Project Initiation 
Matrix (PIM) to flesh out a proposal into a clear concept.  When the project is 
authorised, an approved project methodology is used to control and deliver 
the project and report on progress through to the appropriate Strategic 
Programme.  A process map of the project process is shown at Appendix 1B. 
 
For all Strategic Capital Programmes there is a Programme Board chaired by 
a member of Management Team and comprising Councillors, including a 
member of Cabinet, alongside key members of staff who are involved in the 
implementation and delivery of capital schemes.  The aim of Programme 
Boards is to ensure that schemes are managed efficiently and effectively, by 
identifying the Council’s priorities and aligning capital expenditure to meet 
these priorities. 
 
 

Financing of Capital Expenditure 

All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources 
(Government grants, developers and other contributions), the Council’s own 
resources (revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or borrowing (borrowing 
and leasing).  The planned financing of Capital Expenditure is as follows: 
 
Table 2 - Capital financing 

 

Financing 
2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

External sources  15,255   13,540   8,064   75   75  

Own resources  1,982   867   8,488   4,754  0    

Borrowing  34,064   51,025   35,435   34,080   50,956  

Total   51,301   65,432   51,987   38,909   51,031  

 
 
 
The core financing of capital expenditure continues to be borrowing.  The 
Council continues to borrow under the guidance of CIPFA’s Prudential Code 
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, which gives the Council the power to 

28



 5 

borrow. 
 

Borrowing is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must 
be repaid and this is therefore replaced over time by other sources of finance, 
usually from revenue, which is known as minimum revenue provision (MRP).  
Alternatively, proceeds from selling capital assets, known as capital receipts, 
may be used to repay borrowing.  Planned MRP repayments are shown in the 
table below: 
 
Table 3 – Repayment of borrowing 

 

Repayment of Borrowing 
2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

MRP  5,055   5,199   6,135   6,414   6,667  

 
 
The Council’s full MRP Policy is approved by Council as part of the Treasury 
Management Strategy report. The MRP policy ensures that over the life of any 
asset the full borrowing is repaid. 
 
The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of borrowing is measured by 
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  This increases with new 
borrowing-financed capital expenditure and reduces with MRP and capital 
receipts used to repay borrowing.  The CFR is expected to rise to £608m in 
2021/22.  Based on current projections for capital expenditure and financing, 
the Council’s estimated CFR is as follows: 

 
Table 4 - Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement 

 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

CFR 523,343 569,170 598,470 626,136 670,426 

 
 

Asset Management 

To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, the Council has 
an Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025 that was approved by Cabinet in 
2020.  This Strategy sets out the key future objectives and how the Council 
will effectively manage, use and review the assets, and an update is being 
report to Audit and Resources in Feb 2022.   
 
When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that the 
proceeds, known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets, or used to 
repay borrowing.  
 

29



 6 

Treasury Management 

Treasury Management is concerned with keeping sufficient, but not excessive 
cash available to meet the Council’s spending needs, while managing the 
risks involved.  Surplus cash is invested until required, whilst a shortage of 
cash will be met by borrowing.  The Council is typically cash rich in the short-
term as revenue income is received before it is spent, but cash poor in the 
long-term as capital expenditure is incurred before being financed.  The 
revenue cash surpluses are offset against capital cash shortfalls to reduce 
overall borrowing, also known as internal borrowing. 
 
The Council’s main objectives when borrowing are to achieve a low but 
certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans change in future.  
These objectives are often conflicting and the Council has struck a balance 
between cheap variable rate short-term loans (currently available at around 
0.25%) and long term fixed rate loans where the future cost is known but 
higher (currently between 1.5 and 2.5%).  The Council continues to weigh up 
this balance and evaluates the market to maintain affordability, certainty and 
flexibility in its borrowing.  The Council takes external professional advice on 
interest rates and Treasury Management from advisors Arlingclose to help 
inform this Strategy. 

 
Projected levels of the Council’s total outstanding net borrowing are shown 
below, compared with the CFR.  The difference between the two being the 
level of internal borrowing used by the Council.  This represents the use of 
reserves, working capital and revenue financing to offset the need to borrow. 

 
Table 5 - Net Borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement 

 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Net Borrowing 503,233 549,059 578,359 606,026 650,316 

CFR 523,343 569,170 598,470 626,136 670,426 

 
 
Statutory guidance is that net borrowing should remain below the CFR, except 
in the short term.  As can be seen from the table above, the Council expects 
to comply with this in the medium term. 
 
The Council is legally obliged to set an affordable borrowing limit each year.  
In line with statutory guidance, a lower operational boundary for borrowing is 
also set as a warning level should borrowing begin to approach the limit.  As 
the Council approves capital schemes throughout the year, this limit is 
updated and reviewed regularly and reported to Cabinet for approval by 
Council alongside any Community Investment Programme approvals. 

 

30



 7 

Table 6 - Authorised limit and Operational Boundary for External 

Borrowing 

 

Authorised Limit for External 
Borrowing 

2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Borrowing 522,343 568,170 597,470 625,136 669,426 

Other Long-Term Liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 523,343 569,170 598,470 626,136 670,426 

 

Operational Boundary for 
External Borrowing 

2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Borrowing 511,343 557,170 586,470 614,136 658,426 

Other Long-Term Liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 512,343 558,170 587,470 615,136 659,426 

 
 
 

Investments 

Treasury Investments arise from receiving cash before it is paid out again.  
Investments made for service reasons or for financial gain are not generally 
considered to be treasury investments. 
 
The Council’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and 
liquidity over yield, focusing on minimising risk rather than maximising returns.  
Cash that is likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for 
example with the Government, other local authorities, or high-quality banks, to 
minimise the risk of loss.  As can be seen below, in order to ensure liquidity 
during the current Pandemic, additional funds are being held short term, to 
maintain liquidity.   
 
Money that will be held longer term is invested more widely, to balance the 
risk of loss against the risk of receiving returns below inflation.  Long term 
investments may be held in pooled funds, in this instance an external Fund 
Manager makes decisions on which particular investments to buy and the 
Council may request its money back at short notice. 

 
Table 7 - Treasury management investments 

 

Treasury Investments 
2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Near-term Investments 24,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 

Longer-term Investments 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Total 34,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 

31



 8 

The Council delegates responsibility for the monitoring and scrutiny of its 
Treasury Management practices and activity to the Treasury Management 
Review Group (TMRG), which includes Councillors and the Chief Financial 
Officer, and delegates responsibility for the implementation and administration 
of Treasury Management policies, strategies and practices to the Council’s 
Chief Financial Officer.  The Council also employs an external advisor, 
Arlingclose, to provide advice on how the Council can manage its investment 
and borrowing portfolio. 
 
Investments for service purposes are where the Council may choose to assist 
local public services by making loans to, or purchasing shares in, local service 
providers, or businesses to promote economic growth, or to help enable 
Council objectives externally, such as by lending money to a housing 
developer in order to provide additional affordable housing that would not be 
provided by the open market.  Considering the public service objective, the 
Council is willing to take more risk than with treasury investments.  However, 
it still plans for such investments to break even or generate a profit after all 
costs. 

 
Decisions on service investments are made by the relevant Executive Head in 
consultation with the Chief Financial Officer and must meet the criteria limits 
laid down in the Investment Strategy.  Most loans and shares are capital 
expenditure and investments and purchases will therefore be approved as 
part of the CIP. 

 
Cabinet are requested to recommend that Council approve the Investment 
Strategy which is contained within the separate Investment Strategy report. 
 

Property Purchases 

With central government financial support for local public services declining, 
the Council has purchased property in order to a meet a number of corporate 
objectives for Regeneration, Economic and Housing Development and 
achievement of its Efficiency Strategy, to enable it to continue to provide high 
quality local services. 

 
Due to the nature of these transactions there is a higher risk, bringing with it a 
higher return.  In order to mitigate the risk, the Council carries out additional 
due diligence on these investments.  The first element that is looked at is 
tenant covenant strength which is their ability to pay the rent.  This includes, 
but is not limited to, credit checks on potential tenants, meetings with the 
senior management of potential tenants of large value transactions and a 
detailed review of their accounting statements. 
 
Secondary to tenant covenant strength is the financial business case.  The 
Council borrows for property purchases; therefore, the Council ensures that 
the income from the tenant is in excess of the borrowing costs and repayment 
of borrowing (MRP) applicable to the purchase of the property. 

 
In order to make the financial business case as resilient and low risk as 

32



 9 

possible, the Council adds in three additional costs, an interest rate 
adjustment, a void adjustment, and a maintenance adjustment.  As the 
Council borrows at a variable rate for its commercial activity, the Council 
charges an interest adjustment on each property.  This is where, although the 
Council predominantly borrows at cheap variable rates, any financial business 
case is charged at higher long-term rates.  This ensures should interest rates 
rise in the future, the Council will still make a financial return.  This adjustment 
is transferred to the Interest Rate Reserve, an earmarked reserve used to 
mitigate the risk of future rate rises affecting the Councils ability to provide 
services. 

 
The Council also charges a void adjustment to each business case.  This 
reserves a percentage of the income so that when the initial lease period 
expires, the Council has enough funds set aside to cover the loss of income 
and void costs such as Business Rates for up to 12 months should that tenant 
decide not to renew a lease, leaving the Council having to find a new tenant.  
This adjustment is transferred to the property reserve, an earmarked reserve 
used to ensure a future loss of tenant does not affect the Councils ability to 
provide services.   
 
The Council also has a similar maintenance reserve, where, depending on the 
age and condition of the building, between 5 and 10% of all income is put in 
reserve each year to cover future maintenance works to the buildings.  This 
Maintenance Reserve can then be used to fund the Repairs and Renewals 
Programme prepared by the Property Services Team. 

 
Decisions on property purchases are also subject to additional levels of officer 
scrutiny, through meetings between members of Management Team, Asset 
Management, Planning, Legal Services and Financial Services.  The aim of 
these meetings is to scrutinise the due diligence that has been carried out, 
and to scrutinise financial business cases to ensure potential purchases are 
sound. 

 
After all due diligence, property purchases are then treated as capital 
expenditure, and will therefore be approved as part of the capital programme. 

 
Further information on property purchases is covered in more detail in the 
Investment Strategy. 
 
 

Revenue Budget Implications 

Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the Revenue Budget, 
interest payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any 
investment income receivable.  The net annual charge is known as financing 
costs; this is compared to the net revenue stream i.e. the amount of revenue 
spend funded by Council Tax, Business Rates and general Government 
Grants. 

 

33



 10 

 

Table 8 - Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream 

 

Financing costs compared to 
net revenue stream 

2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Financing Costs 6,224 8,566 10,844 11,162 11,441 

Proportion of net revenue 
stream 

27.2% 86.4% 106.7% 120.6% 120.3% 

 
 
Whilst the table above shows that the Council is forecast to spend more on 
financing costs than on revenue spend net of financing costs by the end of the 
forecast period, what it does not show is the annual surplus that these 
investments have bought into the Authority to spend on services. 

 
Table 9 - Revenue Surplus from Capital Financing 

 

Financing costs compared to 
income generated 

2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Financing Costs 6,224 8,566 10,844 11,162 11,441 

Income/Savings generated by 
schemes funded by borrowing 

19,165 19,316 20,623 21,988 21,993 

Annual Surplus 12,942 10,750 9,779 10,826 10,552 

 
 
Further details on the revenue implications of capital expenditure will be 
discussed in the 2022/23 Revenue Budget. 

 
Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, the 
Revenue Budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few years will 
extend for up to 50 years into the future.  The CFO is satisfied that the 
proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and sustainable. 
 

Knowledge and Skills 

The Council employs qualified and experienced staff in senior positions with 
responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and investment 
decisions.   The team includes: 

 

• A Finance Team with five CIPFA qualified accountants, all with over ten 
years of experience in Local Government accounting, and one CIMA 
qualified accountant. 
 

• An Asset Management Team including a number of Chartered 
Surveyors with over 10 years’ experience who are members of the 

34



 11 

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), two of which are RICS 
Registered Valuers. They are regulated by their professional body 
(RICS) and comply with the RICS rules in relation to conduct and 
Continuing Professional Development.  

 

• A Legal Team with 4 qualified solicitors, 2 Chartered Legal Executives, 
a locum barrister and a trainee Legal Executive and a Trainee 
Solicitor.  This includes 2 with over 10 years’  in Local Government; 5 
with significant property and related commercial transaction knowledge; 
3 with extensive planning experience and 3 with substantial regulatory 
and governance background.  
 

Where Council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is 
made of external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field.  
The Council currently employs Arlingclose Limited as Treasury Management 
Advisers and takes advice from external property and legal advisors where 
appropriate.  This approach is often more cost effective than employing such 
staff directly and ensures that the Council has access to knowledge and skills 
commensurate with its risk appetite. 

 
Further details on officer’s skills and knowledge, as well as external advisers 
can be found in the Investment Strategy report. 
 
 
 
 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

PROGRAMME BOARD £ £ £ £

Climate and Emergency 629,260              1,500,000           -                       -                  

Housing Programme 34,314,320         30,892,240         30,100,000         46,175,460    

IT 250,000              450,000              508,740              -                  

Infrastructure Programme 19,943,100         2,403,090           346,470              2,856,330      

Leisure Programme 567,690              2,960,000           344,170              -                  

LAC - Bishopstoke, Fair Oak & Horton Heath 783,520              2,060,850           -                       -                  

LAC - Bursledon, Hamble & Hound 545,290              1,491,780           -                       -                  

LAC - Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury 206,710              81,540                -                       -                  

LAC - Eastleigh 1,241,830           2,564,680           -                       -                  

LAC - Hedge End, West End & Botley 3,737,660           872,780              -                       -                  

Urban Regeneration 3,212,950           6,710,200           7,610,140           2,000,000      

TOTAL COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 65,432,330         51,987,160         38,909,520         51,031,790    

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

FINANCED BY £ £ £ £

Borrowing 51,025,080         35,434,930         34,080,150         50,956,790    

Capital Financing Reserve 290,220              -                       -                       -                  

Capital Financing Reserve - BFOHH 730                      -                       -                       -                  

Capital Financing Reserve - BHH 6,480                   -                       -                       -                  

Capital Financing Reserve - Eastleigh 38,930                20,370                -                       -                  

Capital Financing Reserve - HEWEB 4,140                   14,400                -                       -                  

Capital Grants 6,797,030           2,607,300           75,000                75,000            

Capital Receipts 508,240              1,855,000           1,354,370           -                  

Developers' Contributions 6,692,200           5,846,080           -                       -                  

New Homes Bonus 69,280                6,209,080           3,400,000           -                  

TOTAL FUNDING 65,432,330         51,987,160         38,909,520         51,031,790    

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

CLIMATE AND EMERGENCY £ £ £ £

Air Quality Action Plan 2020 – 2025 26,120                -                       -                       -                  

Strategic Climate Scheme 500,000              -                       -                       -                  

Tree Nursery 103,140              1,500,000           -                       -                  

TOTAL HOUSING BOARD 629,260              1,500,000           -                       -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

HOUSING PROGRAMME BOARD £ £ £ £

10-20 Romsey Road 4,905,460           -                       -                       -                  

7-9 Market Street 430,690              -                       -                       -                  

Affordable Housing NHB Grant -                       3,400,000           3,400,000           -                  

Arch Theatre 56,030                -                       -                       -                  

Chalcroft Solar Land 9,530,000           -                       -                       -                  

Chamberlayne Rd & Derby Road Housing Scheme 500,000              2,706,020           500,000              -                  

Disabled Facility Grant 1,533,890           -                       -                       -                  

Empty Home Loans Scheme -                       100,000              -                       -                  

H.M.O.Grant -                       5,000                   -                       -                  

Home Improvement Loan -                       38,460                -                       -                  

Horton Heath Housing Project 10,775,250         21,336,310         25,100,000         45,175,460    

Midlands Estate West End 25,000                -                       -                       -                  

St Johns Phase 2 and 3 500,000              1,000,000           1,100,000           1,000,000      

37



Stoneham Land Development -                       31,980                -                       -                  

Stoneham Phase 5 6,000,000           1,374,470           -                       -                  

Town Centre Sites 58,000                900,000              -                       -                  

TOTAL HOUSING BOARD 34,314,320         30,892,240         30,100,000         46,175,460    

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

IT BOARD £ £ £ £

IT 5 Year Programme 19/20 - 23/24 250,000              450,000              508,740              -                  

TOTAL IT BOARD 250,000              450,000              508,740              -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAMME BOARD £ £ £ £

Air Quality Monitoring Eqt 79,110                -                       -                       -                  

Anaerobic Digestion Feasibility Study 57,100                -                       -                       -                  

Asset Management Programme 72,830                -                       -                       -                  

Bike Shed Upgrades 30,000                -                       -                       -                  

Bishopstoke Road Improvements 35,000                796,620              -                       -                  

Black Horse House Replacement Boilers 38,970                -                       -                       -                  

Chalcroft Solar Park 17,262,770         -                       -                       -                  

Coffee Machine - The Point 540                      -                       -                       -                  

DEFRA Air Quality 40,430                -                       -                       -                  

Energy Monitoring System 120                      -                       -                       -                  

Herald Industrial Estate Dilapidations 8,230                   -                       -                       -                  

Parnham Drive Industrial Unit Repairs 10,800                -                       -                       -                  

Public Transport Initiative 7,890                   -                       -                       -                  

Repairs and Renewals Programme 1,192,210           206,470              206,470              2,716,330      

Sidings Industrial Estate Dilapidation Works 94,320                -                       -                       -                  

Solar Photo Voltaic (PV) Panels (climate change) 80                        -                       -                       -                  

The Point - Studio Works 42,450                -                       -                       -                  

The Point Emergency Lighting 4,730                   -                       -                       -                  

Vehicle & Plant Programme 761,620              1,260,000           -                       -                  

Waste Collection Receptacles 146,190              140,000              140,000              140,000          

Wessex House Cladding 22,710                -                       -                       -                  

Wessex House Internal Refurbishment 15,000                -                       -                       -                  

Wessex House Website 20,000                -                       -                       -                  

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAMME BOARD 19,943,100         2,403,090           346,470              2,856,330      

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

LEISURE PROGRAMME BOARD £ £ £ £

Fleming Park Leisure Centre 35,960                -                       -                       -                  

Fleming Park Leisure Centre Car Park 1,770                   -                       -                       -                  

Itchen Valley Country Park Projects 475,020              2,960,000           344,170              -                  

Lakeside Land Extension 17,560                -                       -                       -                  

Parklife Feasibility 37,380                -                       -                       -                  

TOTAL LEISURE PROGRAMME BOARD 567,690              2,960,000           344,170              -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

LAC - BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK & HORTON HEATH £ £ £ £

BIFOHH Public Art Strategy -                       125,820              -                       -                  

Bishopstoke Bins 17,210                -                       -                       -                  

Bishopstoke Community Facilities -                       975,950              -                       -                  

Blackberry Drive & Templecombe Way Play Area Improvements 52,850                -                       -                       -                  

38



Botley Road Crossing -                       35,600                -                       -                  

Building Improvements Y Zone -                       30,480                -                       -                  

CCTV Fly Tipping -                       5,000                   -                       -                  

Church Road Play Area 28,650                -                       -                       -                  

Church Road/Stoke Road Play Area 3,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Cigarette Bin 150                      -                       -                       -                  

Community Building Horton Heath 101,770              -                       -                       -                  

Crowd Hill Drive Play Areas 116,690              -                       -                       -                  

Dragons Teeth - Noyce Drive -                       1,840                   -                       -                  

Fair Oak Library 55,980                -                       -                       -                  

Fair Oak Square Improvements 13,250                -                       -                       -                  

Fair Oak/Wyvern Schools Scooter/Cycle Racks -                       14,500                -                       -                  

Hedge End/Horton Heath Cycle Route -                       35,380                -                       -                  

Information Boards 2,500                   -                       -                       -                  

Lighting Alan Drayton Way 1,510                   -                       -                       -                  

Memorial Hall & Glebe Meadow Project -                       573,940              -                       -                  

New Century Play Park Eqt 162,350              -                       -                       -                  

Path Purchase Bishopstoke 1,000                   4,000                   -                       -                  

Pembers Farm Play Areas 69,870                -                       -                       -                  

Speed Indicator Devices (SID) for BIFOHH 290                      -                       -                       -                  

Squash Club Development 50,000                -                       -                       -                  

St Paul's comm building 15,020                214,330              -                       -                  

Stokewood Surgery Extension 65,360                -                       -                       -                  

The Mount/Cemex Public Art 25,640                -                       -                       -                  

Upper Barn Copse 430                      -                       -                       -                  

White Tree Farm Development -                       980                      -                       -                  

Winchester Rd/Mortimers Lane Junction Imp -                       43,030                -                       -                  

TOTAL LAC - BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK & HORTON HEATH 783,520              2,060,850           -                       -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

LAC - BURSLEDON, HAMBLE & HOUND £ £ £ £

Bartletts Field Play Area -                       14,500                -                       -                  

Benches at Southern Quay 40,000                -                       -                       -                  

BHH Benches replacement Budget -                       10,000                -                       -                  

BHH Bins 2,900                   9,620                   -                       -                  

BHH Dragon's Teeth 1,100                   490                      -                       -                  

BHH History and Wayfinding Trail project 20,020                -                       -                       -                  

BHH Public art -                       229,700              -                       -                  

BHH Public art Vision only 150                      14,850                -                       -                  

BOFORs Gun Budget 2,480                   -                       -                       -                  

Bursledon Parish Council Sign / Bin and Benches 740                      36,190                -                       -                  

Bursledon Village Hall 2,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Cleverley Rise Play Area 84,370                -                       -                       -                  

Coronation Parade Phase 2 26,720                -                       -                       -                  

Cricket Activity Camp  Improvement works -                       3,220                   -                       -                  

Cunningham Gardens Dragons Teeth 40                        -                       -                       -                  

Fencing around the emplacement at Hamble Shore 2,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Hamble Rail Trail 11,520                2,480                   -                       -                  

Hamble Sports Complex Grant 127,940              -                       -                       -                  

Hard landscape of road and car park in the new cemetery 24,570                -                       -                       -                  

Heron Open Space -                       76,320                -                       -                  

Ingleside Green Project -                       20,000                -                       -                  

Kestrel Park Play Area 75,010                -                       -                       -                  

King George V Playing Fields -                       60,060                -                       -                  

Kingfisher Grange Play Area  -                       70,440                -                       -                  

Lionheart Way Ecology Park -                       79,660                -                       -                  

Long Lane Play Area Refurbishment -                       65,060                -                       -                  

Mini Wildlife Habitat 6,970                   -                       -                       -                  

Mount Pleasant Redevelopment -                       120,740              -                       -                  

Netley Local Centre Improvements 1,570                   -                       -                       -                  

Netley Local Centre Public Art 320                      -                       -                       -                  

Netley Nibbles Grant 2,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Netley Station Platform Seat 2,000                   -                       -                       -                  

New Gym Equipment at Station Road 20,000                -                       -                       -                  

New Kitchen at Hound Parish Hall 10,000                -                       -                       -                  

39



New Play Area at Station Road -                       100,100              -                       -                  

Pilands Wood Open Space -                       15,000                -                       -                  

Play area on land the East of Dodwell Lane and North of Pylands Lane 70,550                -                       -                       -                  

Purchase of Speed Indicator Device for BHH 290                      -                       -                       -                  

Renovation of Long Lane Pavilion -                       500,460              -                       -                  

Satchell Lane Footway Extension 3,960                   -                       -                       -                  

Tennis Court Refurbishment Long Lane -                       42,890                -                       -                  

TRO Netley Court School 6,060                   -                       -                       -                  

Winchester Close/New Road Improvements 10                        -                       -                       -                  

Woodlands Way Play Area Refurbishment -                       20,000                -                       -                  

TOTAL LAC - BURSLEDON, HAMBLE & HOUND 545,290              1,491,780           -                       -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

LAC - CHANDLERS FORD & HILTINGBURY £ £ £ £

	Chandler's Ford Bins 4,040                   -                       -                       -                  

Ashdown Rd Junction with Hiltingbury Rd Ped. Refuge -                       8,320                   -                       -                  

Ashdown Road Path to Schools -                       3,200                   -                       -                  

CFH Bench Improvements 1,990                   -                       -                       -                  

CFH Cycle parking -                       2,160                   -                       -                  

CFH Public Art -                       5,160                   -                       -                  

CFORD New Street Furniture 2,390                   -                       -                       -                  

Flexford Nature reserve improvements 2,050                   11,030                -                       -                  

Footpath connection at Hiltingbury Recreation Ground 19,670                -                       -                       -                  

Funding from NHB - Hiltingbury Pavilion 20,830                -                       -                       -                  

Hiltingbury Lakes Countryside Site -                       1,140                   -                       -                  

Hiltingbury Lakes Improvements 90,710                34,000                -                       -                  

Hiltingbury Recreation Ground Car Park Improvements 10,000                -                       -                       -                  

Hiltingbury Recreation Ground Playing Surface 15,740                -                       -                       -                  

Hut Farm Play Area 640                      -                       -                       -                  

Improvements to CFH Play areas -                       13,000                -                       -                  

Merdon Ave/Kingsway Junction Imp. 15,220                -                       -                       -                  

Ramalley Countryside Site 2,230                   -                       -                       -                  

Speed Indicator Device for CFH 50                        -                       -                       -                  

The Arch upgrade of facilities -                       3,530                   -                       -                  

Winchester Rd Fway Widening 1,880                   -                       -                       -                  

Winchester Rd/Hiltingbury Rd Junction Imp. 19,270                -                       -                       -                  

TOTAL LAC - CHANDLERS FORD & HILTINGBURY 206,710              81,540                -                       -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

LAC - EASTLEIGH £ £ £ £

A new community building for Allbrook Parish -                       165,070              -                       -                  

Access to Home Wood -                       848,230              -                       -                  

Allbrook Hill Play Area -                       290                      -                       -                  

Allbrook Meadows Public Art -                       4,810                   -                       -                  

Avenue Park Bridge Repairs 7,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Bishopstoke Recreation Ground 77,050                -                       -                       -                  

Bishopstoke Recreation Ground riverbank repairs 5,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Bus Shelter on Allbrook Hill 4,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Cheriton Road Play Area 66,040                -                       -                       -                  

CPZ Mount View 7,710                   -                       -                       -                  

Eastleigh Street Furniture 10,460                -                       -                       -                  

Eastleigh Town Centre Action Plan -                       250,400              -                       -                  

Eastleigh Town Centre Toilets 72,180                72,190                -                       -                  

Eastleigh War Memorial 2,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Falcon Square Open Space Imp. 3,630                   -                       -                       -                  

Fleming Park flood management -                       45,050                -                       -                  

Fleming Park landscaping & Public Art -                       83,920                -                       -                  

Fleming Park Old Golf Course Improvements 8,460                   26,110                -                       -                  

Fleming Park Play Area -                       31,210                -                       -                  

Fleming Park Play Area and Paddling Pool -                       26,380                -                       -                  

Fleming Park Public Art -                       10,290                -                       -                  

40



Freespace Skate Park (includes Gate) -                       134,020              -                       -                  

Freespace Skate Park Project -                       76,730                -                       -                  

Grantham Green Open Space Improvements 18,800                -                       -                       -                  

Illegal encampment prevention for the Lakeside Estate 580                      -                       -                       -                  

Improving local health provision -                       157,070              -                       -                  

Knowle Hill Footpath -                       1,530                   -                       -                  

Lakeside Country Park Access Road -                       6,240                   -                       -                  

Lakeside Country Park Car Parks -                       10,440                -                       -                  

Lawn Road Play Area 75,810                66,240                -                       -                  

Leigh Rd Rec. Ground - replacement furniture 9,690                   -                       -                       -                  

Leigh Road Recreation Ground -                       149,100              -                       -                  

Market Place Public Art Tree Grills 1,180                   -                       -                       -                  

Market Street MUGA ( Community Garden ) 4,210                   3,820                   -                       -                  

Market Street MUGA ( Parking element scheme ) 16,030                -                       -                       -                  

Market Street South Play Area 4,670                   -                       -                       -                  

New Litter Bins & Benches 1,500                   -                       -                       -                  

New vehicle access for Allbrook Meadow 6,800                   -                       -                       -                  

North Stoneham Park bus provision -                       97,080                -                       -                  

North Stoneham Park play areas 6,810                   -                       -                       -                  

North Stoneham Public Art 3,230                   256,070              -                       -                  

Pirelli Park Open Spaces 54,410                -                       -                       -                  

Shakespeare Junior School Cycle & Scooter Parking 6,090                   -                       -                       -                  

Sports Pitch Relocation Project 711,970              -                       -                       -                  

Station to Lidl Footpath 5,750                   -                       -                       -                  

Velmore Public Art 2,410                   -                       -                       -                  

Wells Place event space extension 40,040                -                       -                       -                  

Xmas Lighting 6,320                   6,060                   -                       -                  

Youth Facility in Eastleigh 2,000                   36,330                -                       -                  

TOTAL LAC - EASTLEIGH 1,241,830           2,564,680           -                       -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

LAC - HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY £ £ £ £

Access to Cutbush Lane Playing Fields 20                        -                       -                       -                  

Ageas Bowl Boxing Facilities 700                      -                       -                       -                  

Automation of the village clock and upgrades to the clock tower in Botley 25,030                -                       -                       -                  

Barnsland Recreation and Skate Park 250                      176,880              -                       -                  

Berry Entrance 28,690                -                       -                       -                  

Berrywood Meadows, Hedge End -                       36,160                -                       -                  

Bins Heweb -                       14,400                -                       -                  

Boorley Park Kitchen Project -                       30,090                -                       -                  

Boorley Park Play Area 45,660                -                       -                       -                  

Boorley Park Public Art -                       108,360              -                       -                  

Botley Allotments 3,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Botley Transport Initiatives 7,000                   -                       -                       -                  

Bradbeers Roundabout -                       7,040                   -                       -                  

Car park barriers at Boorley Park -                       9,290                   -                       -                  

Community Facilities Boorley Park -                       70,360                -                       -                  

Cycle Link Barbe Baker Avenue (TSI 741) -                       14,950                -                       -                  

Cycle Link St John's Rd/Foord Rd & Upper Northam Drive -                       2,470                   -                       -                  

Cycleway Cutbush & Townhill Way (TSI 502) -                       880                      -                       -                  

Defibrillator, Boorley Park -                       1,800                   -                       -                  

Dowds Farm Play Area 990                      -                       -                       -                  

East Side of Moorgreen Rd Footway 16,530                -                       -                       -                  

Electric charging points, Botley 13,200                -                       -                       -                  

Environmental Imp around Next Development 720                      -                       -                       -                  

Flood Resilience 6,430-                   -                       -                       -                  

Hatch Farm Play Area, West End 5,120                   -                       -                       -                  

Hedge End Station Barriers 4,830                   -                       -                       -                  

High Hill Field IVCP 1,060                   -                       -                       -                  

Hilldene Car Park 1,500                   -                       -                       -                  

Hilldene Community Centre Car Parking 2,000                   -                       -                       -                  

IVCP Entrance Project 340                      -                       -                       -                  

IVCP Litter Bins 240                      -                       -                       -                  

IVCP Play Trail Upgrade 3,870                   -                       -                       -                  

Kings Copse Rd to Ave Cycle Strategy -                       2,030                   -                       -                  

41



Little Hatts Recreation Ground, Botley 1,830                   -                       -                       -                  

Lower Northam Rd Footway Links -                       5,460                   -                       -                  

Moorgreen Meadows -                       59,600                -                       -                  

Old Fire Station 10                        -                       -                       -                  

Peewit Hill Reptile Receptor Site -                       27,870                -                       -                  

Play Trail St Johns Development -                       50,840                -                       -                  

Public Art at Hatch Farm -                       45,790                -                       -                  

Public Art Charterhouse Way 14,080                -                       -                       -                  

Public Art Kings Copse Primary School -                       31,410                -                       -                  

Public art project at West End Heritage Trail 6,290                   -                       -                       -                  

Pudbrook Open Space 7,130                   -                       -                       -                  

Shafford Meadows Public Art -                       50                        -                       -                  

Shamblehurst Lane Bus Stop (TSI 119) 3,400                   -                       -                       -                  

Telegraph Woods 1,260                   22,600                -                       -                  

Telegraph Woods ( a study into the flooding issues) 1,260                   -                       -                       -                  

The Pavilions Public Art 7,320                   -                       -                       -                  

Toilet upgrades at either the Old School House or the Town Centre in Hedge End 13,130                -                       -                       -                  

Townhill Farm & Carpathia Close Play Areas 1,240                   -                       -                       -                  

Upgrade of existing paths at Itchen Valley Country Park -                       132,300              -                       -                  

Upgrade of the play areas at Botley Recreation Ground 41,170                -                       -                       -                  

Upgrade of the play areas at Moorgreen Recreation Ground 20,690                -                       -                       -                  

Upgrade of the play areas at Turnpike Way 12,760                20,790                -                       -                  

Upgrades at West End Parish Centre 25,840                -                       -                       -                  

Upgrades to the Drummond Centre in Hedge End 22,340                -                       -                       -                  

Upgrades to the pathways at Pudbrook open space in Botley 10,560                -                       -                       -                  

West End Copse trim trail equipment 4,130                   -                       -                       -                  

West End Heritage Trail 19,070                -                       -                       -                  

Wildern Community Hub - outdoor youth project -                       1,360                   -                       -                  

Wildern Leisure Centre - swimming pool roof 78,030                -                       -                       -                  

Woodhouse Lane development 3,291,800           -                       -                       -                  

TOTAL LAC - HEDGE END, WEST END & BOTLEY 3,737,660           872,780              -                       -                  

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Budget Budget Budget Budget

URBAN REGENERATION £ £ £ £

1 Upper Northam Road (Budgens) 50,000                138,630              -                       -                  

Acquistion of International House 2,600                   -                       -                       -                  

Chestnut Avenue Retail Park 7,270                   -                       -                       -                  

CIP Project Management Training 3,970                   -                       -                       -                  

Civic Infrastructure -                       -                       947,480              -                  

Civic Office Development Site 250,000              4,194,880           4,194,880           -                  

Enterprise House 50,740                400,000              -                       -                  

Former Barclays Bank, Hamble 75,130                -                       -                       -                  

Fryern Pavilion 11,220                -                       -                       -                  

Hampshire Community Bank 125,000              -                       -                       -                  

Hampshire House 198,730              -                       -                       -                  

Hendy Ford Development Site 33,640                -                       -                       -                  

Household Waste Recycle Centre Stoneycroft Rise 122,280              -                       -                       -                  

Jubilee Playing Fields 5,000                   -                       -                       -                  

North Stoneham Local Centre 197,380              -                       -                       -                  

Pitmore Road, Allbrook 45,000                -                       -                       -                  

Property Acquisition 425,450              -                       -                       -                  

St Johns Road Acquisition 494,500              -                       -                       -                  

Station Hill Acquisition 65,040                -                       -                       -                  

The Post Office 450,000              1,000,000           2,467,780           2,000,000      

Upper Northam Road 600,000              976,690              -                       -                  

TOTAL URBAN REGENERATION 3,212,950           6,710,200           7,610,140           2,000,000      

TOTAL COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 65,432,330         51,987,160         38,909,520         51,031,790    

42



 

 

43



 

 

 
Governance of Live Projects 

Housing 
Programme Board 

Local Area 
Committees (x5) 

Community Project 
Board 

Live 
Projects 

Live 
Projects 

Live 
Projects 

Highlight (i.e. Progress)  
Reports  
Monthly 

PMO support these meetings, and collate reports 
Democratic Services  

support these meetings 

Strategic Level 

Delivery Level, 
with Project 

Boards 

44



  

Treasury 
Management 
Strategy 
2022/23 

 

45



 2 

Contents 
 
Background ...................................................................................................... 3 

Economic Background ..................................................................................... 3 

Credit Outlook .................................................................................................. 4 

Interest Rate Forecast ..................................................................................... 4 

Local Context ................................................................................................... 5 

Table 1 – Existing Borrowing and Treasury Investment Position ..................... 5 

Table 2 - Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast ............................................ 5 

Borrowing Strategy .......................................................................................... 6 

Sources of Borrowing ....................................................................................... 7 

Treasury Investment Strategy .......................................................................... 8 

Table 3 – Approved Counterparties ................................................................. 9 

Table 4 – Investment limits per group ............................................................ 12 

Related Matters.............................................................................................. 12 

Other Options Considered ............................................................................. 13 

Table 5 – Alternative Strategies ..................................................................... 13 

 

 

  

46



 3 

Background 

Treasury Management is the management of the Council’s cash flows, 
borrowing and investments, and the associated risks.  The Council has 
borrowed and invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed 
to financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of 
changing interest rates.  The successful identification, monitoring and control 
of financial risk are therefore central to the Council’s prudent financial 
management.  

 
Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework 
of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury 
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2017 Edition (the 
CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve a Treasury Management 
Strategy before the start of each financial year.  This report fulfils the 
Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have 
regard to the CIPFA Code. 

Investments held for service and commercial purposes are considered in a 
different report, the Investment Strategy – Appendix 3 

 

Economic Background 

The ongoing impact on the UK from coronavirus, together with higher inflation, 
higher interest rates, and the country’s trade position post-Brexit, will be major 
influences on the Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2022/23. 

The Bank of England (BoE) increased Bank Rate to 0.25% in December 2021 
while maintaining its Quantitative Easing programme at £895 billion. The 
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted 8-1 in favour of raising rates, and 
unanimously to maintain the asset purchase programme.  

Within the announcement the MPC noted that the pace of the global recovery 
was broadly in line with its November Monetary Policy Report. Prior to the 
emergence of the Omicron coronavirus variant, the Bank also considered the 
UK economy to be evolving in line with expectations, however the increased 
uncertainty and risk to activity the new variant presents, the Bank revised 
down its estimates for Q4 GDP growth to 0.6% from 1.0%. Inflation was 
projected to be higher than previously forecast, with CPI likely to remain 
above 5% throughout the winter and peak at 6% in April 2022. The labour 
market was generally performing better than previously forecast and the BoE 
now expects the unemployment rate to fall to 4% compared to 4.5% forecast 
previously, but notes that Omicron could weaken the demand for labour. 

UK CPI for November 2021 registered 5.1% year on year, up from 4.2% in the 
previous month. Core inflation, which excludes the more volatile components, 
rose to 4.0% y/y from 3.4%. The most recent labour market data for the three 
months to October 2021 showed the unemployment rate fell to 4.2% while the 
employment rate rose to 75.5%.  
 

47



 4 

Gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 1.3% in the third calendar quarter of 
2021 according to the initial estimate, compared to a gain of 5.5% q/q in the 
previous quarter, with the annual rate slowing to 6.6% from 23.6%. The Q3 
gain was modestly below the consensus forecast of a 1.5% q/q rise. During 
the quarter activity measures were boosted by sectors that reopened following 
pandemic restrictions, suggesting that wider spending was flat.  
 
The US economy expanded at an annualised rate of 2.1% in Q3 2021, 
slowing sharply from gains of 6.7% and 6.3% in the previous two quarters. In 
its December 2021 interest rate announcement, the Federal Reserve continue 
to maintain the Fed Funds rate at between 0% and 0.25% but outlined its plan 
to reduce its asset purchase programme earlier than previously stated and 
signalled they are in favour of tightening interest rates at a faster pace in 
2022, with three 0.25% movements now expected. 
 

Credit Outlook 

The generally improved economic outlook during 2021 helped bank 
profitability and reduced the level of impairments many had made as 
provisions for bad loans. However, the relatively recent removal of 
coronavirus-related business support measures by the government means the 
full impact on bank balance sheets may not be known for some time. 

The improved economic picture during 2021 led the credit rating agencies to 
reflect this in their assessment of the outlook for the UK sovereign as well as 
several financial institutions, revising them from negative to stable and in 
some cases making rating upgrades. 

Looking ahead, while there is still the chance of bank losses from bad loans 
as government and central bank support is removed, the institutions on the 
Authority’s counterparty list are well-capitalised and general credit conditions 
across the sector are expected to remain benign. Duration limits for 
counterparties on the Authority’s lending list are under regular review and will 
continue to reflect economic conditions and the credit outlook. 

Interest Rate Forecast 

The Authority’s treasury management adviser Arlingclose is forecasting that 
Bank Rate will continue to rise in calendar Q1 2022 to subdue inflationary 
pressures and the perceived desire by the BoE to move away from 
emergency levels of interest rates. 

Investors continue to price in multiple rises in Bank Rate over the next 
forecast horizon, and Arlingclose believes that although interest rates will rise 
again, the increases will not be to the extent predicted by financial markets. In 
the near-term, the risks around Arlingclose’s central case are to the upside 
while over the medium-term the risks become more balanced. 

Yields are expected to remain broadly at current levels over the medium-term. 
The risks around for short and medium-term yields are initially to the upside 
but shifts lower later, while for long-term yields the risk is to the upside. 

48



 5 

However, as ever there will almost certainly be short-term volatility due to 
economic and political uncertainty and events. 

 

For the purpose of setting the budget, it will be assumed that new long-term 
loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 3.00%. 

 

Local Context 

On 31 December 2021 the Council held £496.5m of borrowing and £33.1m of 
treasury investments, shown in table 1 below: 

Table 1 – Existing Borrowing and Treasury Investment Position 

 

Borrowing and Investments Dec-21 Dec-21 

Actual 
Portfolio 

Average 
Rate 

£m % 

External Borrowing:   

Public Works Loan Board 350 1.92 

Local Authorities 146.5 0.05 

LOBO loans from banks 0 0 

Total External Borrowing 496.5 1.37 

Other Long Term Liabilities:   

PFI 0 0 

Finance Leases 0 0 

Transferred Debt 0 0 

Total Gross External Borrowing 496.5 1.37 

Investments:   

Banks and building societies (unsecured) 6.4 0.01 

Money Market Funds 17.5 0.11 

Pooled Funds 9.2 3.60 

Total Investments 33.1 1.00 

Net Borrowing 463.4  

 
Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in 
table 2 below. 

Table 2 - Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast 

 
2020/21 
Actual 

£m 

2021/22 
Estimate 

£m 

2022/23 
Forecast 

£m 

2023/24 
Forecast 

£m 

2024/25 
Forecast 

£m 

General Fund CFR 523 569 598 626 670 

Less: External borrowing (503) (549) (578) (606) (650) 

Internal (over) borrowing 20 20 20 20 20 

49



 6 

 
The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working 
capital are the underlying resources available for investment.  The Council’s 
current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below their 
underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing. 

The Council has an increasing CFR due to the capital programme, but 
minimal investments and therefore borrowing will increase up to £670m over 
the forecast period. 

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends 
that the Authority’s total borrowing should be lower than its highest forecast 
CFR over the next three years.  Table 2 (above) shows that the Council 
expects to comply with this recommendation during 2022/23.   

 

Borrowing Strategy 

The Council currently holds £496.5m of loans.  The balance sheet forecast in 
table 2 shows that the Council expects to borrow up to £578m in 2022/23.  
The Council may also borrow additional sums to pre-fund future year’s 
requirements, providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for 
borrowing of £598m in 2022/23.  This limit is reviewed monthly as part of the 
Community Investment Programme and any change in limits will be reported. 

The Council’s main objective when borrowing money is to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and 
achieving certainty of those costs over the period for which funds are 
required.  The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term 
plans change is a secondary objective. 

Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local 
government funding, the Council’s Borrowing Strategy continues to address 
the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of 
the borrowing portfolio.  With short-term interest rates are currently much 
lower than long-term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-
term to either use internal resources, or to borrow short-term loans instead.   

By doing so, the Council can reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone 
investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk.  The benefits of short-
term borrowing will continue to be monitored regularly against the potential for 
incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years when long-
term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly.  Arlingclose will assist the 
Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis.  Its output may 
determine whether the Council borrows additional sums at long-term fixed 
rates in 2022/23 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this 
causes additional cost in the short-term. 

Less: Usable reserves (55) (55) (55) (55) (55) 

Net Investments (35) (35) (35) (35) (35) 

50



 7 

The Authority has previously raised all its long-term borrowing from the PWLB 
but will consider long-term loans from other sources including banks, 
pensions and local authorities, and will investigate the possibility of issuing 
bonds and similar instruments, in order to lower interest costs and reduce 
over-reliance on one source of funding in line with the CIPFA Code. PWLB 
loans are no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment 
assets primarily for yield; the Authority intends to avoid this activity in order to 
retain its access to PWLB loans.  

Alternatively, the Council may arrange forward starting loans, where the 
interest rate is fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This 
would enable certainty of cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry 
in the intervening period. 

In addition, the Council may borrow further short-term loans to cover 
unplanned cash flow shortages. 

 

Sources of Borrowing 

The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are: 

• HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan 

Board) 

• any institution approved for investments (see below) 

• any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK 

• any other UK public sector body 

• UK public and private sector pension funds (except Hampshire Pension 

Fund) 

• capital market bond investors 

• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies 

created to enable local authority bond issues 

 
 
 
 
In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are 
not borrowing, but may be classed as other borrowing liabilities: 
 
• leasing 

• hire purchase 

• Private Finance Initiative  

• sale and leaseback 

Other sources of borrowing may include: 
 

• Municipal Bond Agency: UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc. was 
established in 2014 by the Local Government Association as an 
alternative to the PWLB.  It issues bonds on the capital markets and 

51



 8 

lends the proceeds to local authorities.  This is a more complicated 
source of finance than the PWLB for two reasons: borrowing authorities 
will be required to provide bond investors with a guarantee to refund 
their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any 
reason; and there will be a lead time of several months between 
committing to borrow and knowing the interest rate payable.  Any 
decision to borrow from the Agency will therefore be the subject of a 
separate report to Cabinet. 
 

• Short-term and variable rate loans: These loans leave the Council 
exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate rises and are therefore 
subject to the interest rate exposure limits in the treasury management 
indicators below. 

• Borrowing Rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay 
loans before maturity and either pay a premium or receive a discount 
according to a set formula based on current interest rates.  Other 
lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature redemption 
terms.  The Council may take advantage of this and replace some 
loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is 
expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk. 

 

Treasury Investment Strategy 

The Council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance 
of expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During 2021/22, the 
Council’s short-term investment balance has ranged between £16m and 
£36m, and similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming 
year. 

The CIPFA Code requires the Council to invest its funds prudently and to 
have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the 
highest rate of return, or yield.  The Council’s objective when investing money 
is to strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk 
of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low 
investment income.  Where balances are expected to be invested for more 
than one year, the Council will aim to achieve a total return that is equal or 
higher than the prevailing rate of inflation, in order to maintain the spending 
power of the sum invested. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has increased the risk that the Bank of England will 
set its Bank Rate at or below zero, which is likely to feed through to negative 
interest rates on all low risk, short-term investment options. Since investments 
cannot pay negative income, negative rates will be applied by reducing the 
value of investments. In this event, security will be measured as receiving the 
contractually agreed amount at maturity, even though this may be less than 
the amount originally invested. 
 
Under the new IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments 
depends on the Council’s “business model” for managing them. The Council 
aims to achieve value from its internally managed treasury investments by a 

52



 9 

business model of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore, where 
other criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for 
at amortised cost. 

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in 
table 3 below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and the time limits 
shown. 

Table 3 – Approved Counterparties 

 

Sector Time Limit 
Counterparty 

Limit 
Sector Limit 

The UK Government. 50 Years Unlimited n/a 

Local Authorities & other 
Government entities 

364 Days £10m Unlimited 

Secured Investments * 30 Days £10m Unlimited 

Banks (Unsecured) * 30 Days £10m Unlimited 

Building Societies 
(Unsecured) * 

30 Days £10m £10m 

Registered Providers 
(Unsecured) * 

30 Days £10m £10m 

Money Market Funds * n/a £10m Unlimited 

Strategic Pooled Funds n/a £10m £10m 

Real Estate Investment 
Trusts 

n/a £10m £10m 

Other Investments * 30 Days £10m £10m 

This table must be read in conjunction with the notes below 
 

* Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will only be 
made with entities whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower 
than A-. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific investment 
or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is 
used. However, investment decisions are never made solely based on credit 
ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will be 
considered. 

Government: Loans to, and bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by, national 
governments, regional and local authorities and multilateral development 
banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is generally a 
lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk. Investments with the 
UK Government are deemed to be zero credit risk due to its ability to create 
additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 
50 years.  

Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which 
limits the potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality 
of the security will be a key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds 

53



 10 

and reverse repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are 
exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but 
the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a credit rating, the 
higher of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty credit rating will be 
used. The combined secured and unsecured investments with any one 
counterparty will not exceed the cash limit for secured investments. 

Banks and building societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates 
of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, 
other than multilateral development banks. These investments are subject to 
the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank 
is failing or likely to fail. See below for arrangements relating to operational 
bank accounts. 

Registered providers (unsecured): Loans to, and bonds issued or 
guaranteed by, registered providers of social housing or registered social 
landlords, formerly known as housing associations. These bodies are 
regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing (in England), the Scottish 
Housing Regulator, the Welsh Government and the Department for 
Communities (in Northern Ireland). As providers of public services, they retain 
the likelihood of receiving government support if needed.   

Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice 
liquidity and very low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money 
markets. They have the advantage over bank accounts of providing wide 
diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a professional 
fund manager in return for a small fee. Although no sector limit applies to 
money market funds, the Authority will take care to diversify its liquid 
investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash. 

Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds that offer enhanced 
returns over the longer term but are more volatile in the short term.  These 
allow the Authority to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the 
need to own and manage the underlying investments. Because these funds 
have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a notice 
period, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the Authority’s 
investment objectives will be monitored regularly. 

Real estate investment trusts: Shares in companies that invest mainly in 
real estate and pay the majority of their rental income to investors in a similar 
manner to pooled property funds. As with property funds, REITs offer 
enhanced returns over the longer term, but are more volatile especially as the 
share price reflects changing demand for the shares as well as changes in the 
value of the underlying properties. 
 

Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed 
above, for example unsecured corporate bonds and company loans. Non-
bank companies cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent placing the 
Authority’s investment at risk.  
 
Operational Bank Accounts: The Council may incur operational exposures, 
for example through current accounts, collection accounts and merchant 

54



 11 

acquiring services, to any UK bank with credit ratings no lower than BBB- and 
with assets greater than £25 billion.  These are not classed as investments, 
but are still subject to the risk of a bank bail-in, and balances will therefore be 
kept below £10m per bank.  The Bank of England has stated that in the event 
of failure, banks with assets greater than £25billion are more likely to be 
bailed-in than made insolvent, increasing the chance of the Council 
maintaining operational continuity. 

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Authority’s treasury advisers, 
who will notify changes in ratings as they occur.  Where an entity has its credit 
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria 
then: 

• no new investments will be made; 

• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be 
and 

• full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing 
investments with the affected counterparty. 

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for 
possible downgrade (also known as “negative watch”) so that it may fall below 
the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on 
the next working day will be made with that organisation until the outcome of 
the review is announced.  This policy will not apply to negative outlooks, 
which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change 
of rating. 

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, 
predictors of investment default.  Full regard will therefore be given to other 
available information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it 
invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information 
on potential government support, reports in the quality financial press and 
analysis and advice from the Council’s Treasury Management Adviser.  No 
investments will be made with an organisation if there are substantive doubts 
about its credit quality, even though it may otherwise meet the above criteria. 

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of 
all organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2020, this is not generally 
reflected in credit ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these 
circumstances, the Counil will restrict its investments to those organisations of 
higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to 
maintain the required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be 
in line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean 
that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to 
invest the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with 
the UK Government, or with other local authorities.  This will cause investment 
returns to fall but will protect the principal sum invested. 

In order to limit the risk of loss, a group of Banks under the same ownership 
will be treated as a single organisation for limit purposes. 

55



 12 

Table 4 – Investment limits per group 

 

Investment Limits Cash limit 

Any group of pooled funds under the same management £10m 

Foreign countries £10m 

Negotiable Instruments held in a broker’s nominee account £10m 

 
The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting spreadsheets to 
determine the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed.  
The forecast is compiled on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Council 
being forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial 
commitments.  Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the 
Council’s medium-term financial plan and cash flow forecast. 

Related Matters 

The CIPFA Code requires the Authority to include the following in its treasury 
management strategy. 
 
Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded 
into loans and investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g. interest rate 
collars and forward deals) and to reduce costs or increase income at the 
expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and callable deposits).  The general 
power of competence in section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of 
the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives 
(i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or investment). 

The Authority will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, 
forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to 
reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Authority is exposed to. 
Additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to derivative 
counterparties, will be considered when determining the overall level of risk. 
Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward 
starting transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they 
present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management 
strategy. 

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that 
meets the approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit 
rating for derivative exposures.  

In line with the CIPFA Code, the Authority will seek external advice and will 
consider that advice before entering into financial derivatives to ensure that it 
fully understands the implications. 

The Authority has opted up to professional client status with its providers of 
financial services, including advisers, banks, brokers and fund managers, 
allowing it access to a greater range of services but without the greater 
regulatory protections afforded to individuals and small companies. Given the 

56



 13 

size and range of the Authority’s treasury management activities, the Chief 
Financial Officer believes this to be the most appropriate status.  

Other Options Considered 

The CIPFA Code does not prescribe any particular treasury management 
strategy for local authorities to adopt. The Chief Financial Officer, having 
consulted the Treasury Management Review Group, believes that the above 
strategy represents an appropriate balance between risk management and 
cost effectiveness.  Some alternative strategies, with their financial and risk 
management implications, are listed below. 
 
Table 5 – Alternative Strategies 

 

Alternative Impact on income and 
expenditure 

Impact on risk 
management 

Invest in a narrower 
range of counterparties 
and/or for shorter times 

Interest income will be 
lower 

Lower chance of losses 
from credit related 
defaults, but any such 
losses may be greater 

Invest in a wider range 
of counterparties and/or 
for longer times 

Interest income will be 
higher 

Increased risk of losses 
from credit related 
defaults, but any such 
losses may be smaller 

Borrow additional sums 
at long-term fixed 
interest rates 

Borrowing interest costs 
will rise; this is unlikely 
to be offset by higher 
investment income 

Higher investment 
balance leading to a 
higher impact in the 
event of a default; 
however long-term 
interest costs may be 
more certain 

Borrow short-term or 
variable loans instead of 
long-term fixed rates 

Borrowing interest costs 
will initially be lower 

Increases in borrowing 
interest costs will be 
broadly offset by rising 
investment income in 
the medium term, but 
long-term costs may be 
less certain  

Reduce level of 
borrowing  

Saving on borrowing 
interest is likely to 
exceed lost investment 
income 

Reduced investment 
balance leading to a 
lower impact in the 
event of a default; 
however long-term 
interest costs may be 
less certain 

 
 

57



This page is intentionally left blank



Statement of Policy on making Minimum Revenue Provision 
 

Minimum Revenue Provision for the year 2021/22 and 2022/23 - 
Unsupported borrowing: The Council’s policy for MRP is to calculate the 
amount to be charged to the Income and Expenditure Account by applying the 
following methods: 

 
Prudential Code debt incurred prior to 1 April 2008 - the Council will 
calculate MRP by applying 4% to the apportionment of the value attributed to 
each financial year’s opening CFR in relation to such capital expenditure. 

 
Prudential Code debt incurred in the year 2008/09 - the Council will 
calculate the amounts for MRP  by applying 2% to the apportionment of the 
value attributed to each financial year’s opening CFR in relation to such 
capital expenditure where the item purchased/built is expected to have a life 
of 50 years or more. 

 
Prudential Code debt incurred in the year 2009/10 and onwards in 
relation to income generating property acquisitions - the Council will 
calculate the amounts for MRP by applying an annuity formula incorporating a 
long-term borrowing rate commensurate in duration to the estimated life of the 
item purchased/built to the apportionment of the value attributed to each 
financial year’s opening CFR in relation to such income generating capital 
expenditure where the item purchased/built is expected to have a life of up to 
50 years or more. 

 
Prudential Code debt incurred in the year 2009/10 and onwards in 
relation to other non-income generating capital expenditure - the Council 
will calculate the amounts for MRP by applying a linear percentage akin to the 
estimated life duration of the item purchased/contributed/built to the 
apportionment of the value attributed to each financial year’s opening CFR  in 
relation to such capital expenditure where the item purchased/contributed/built 
is expected to have a life of up to 50 years or more. 
 
Prudential Code debt incurred in relation to Housing Development 
generating capital expenditure - the Council will calculate the amounts for 
MRP by matching debt repayment percentage to the annual income 
generated in the business plan of each individual scheme, or the period of up 
to 50 years, or in full in the year that the asset is disposed. 
 
It is normal and accepted practice in relation to amounts borrowed by 
reference to the Prudential Code, for the Council to calculate MRP in the year 
that follows the year of the capital expenditure. 

 
Minimum Revenue Provision - for the year 2020/21 & 2021/22 - 
Supported borrowing: No circumstances relating to supported borrowing 
exist for the Council at the current time.  Should the situation arise the Council 
would apply annual MRP charge set at 4% of the CFR at the end of the 
preceding financial year. 

 

59



 
All of the above elements are subject to further regard of regulatory 
amendments where applicable. This policy presents a prudent and robust 
approach to the Council’s duty to calculate and make charges for MRP. 

 

60



Appendix 2B

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Annual Capital Expenditure 51,301 65,432 51,987 38,909 51,031

% % % % %

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 27.2 86.4 106.7 120.5 120.1

Percentage that Interest & Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is of 

the net annual budget.

Net borrowing requirement £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

       Brought forward 1 April 484,748 503,233 549,059 578,359 606,026

       Carried forward 31 March 503,233 549,059 578,359 606,026 650,316

       In year borrowing requirement 18,485 45,826 29,300 27,666 44,290

Capital financing requirement as at 31 March 523,343 569,170 598,470 626,136 670,426 Total value of capital spend financed from borrowing.

Annual change in capital financing requirement (CFR) 29,010 45,826 29,300 27,666 44,290

Net impact that capital spend less MRP has on the CFR. When MRP 

exceeds the spend this will be negative.

Net debt and the capital financing requirement

Net debt as at 31st March 503,233 549,059 578,359 606,026 650,316 Estimated total funds borrowed.

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions £ p £ p £ p £ p £ p

on the Council Tax

       Cumulative impact of all decisions taken at Full Council (275.14) (225.00) (202.66) (222.14) (214.38)

This is an indicator of the annual impact of the Community Investment 

Programme on Council Tax. ( ) indicate a benefit.

Estimate Estimate Estimate

Authorised limit for external debt £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

       Borrowing 522,343 568,170 597,470 625,136 669,426

       Other long-term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

       Total 523,343 569,170 598,470 626,136 670,426

Operational boundary for external debt

       Borrowing 511,343 557,170 586,470 614,136 658,426

       Other long-term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

       Total 512,343 558,170 587,470 615,136 659,426

% % % % %

Upper limit for fixed rate interest rate exposure 100 100 100 100 100

% % % % %

Upper limit for variable rate interest rate exposure 100 100 100 100 100

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Upper limit for total principal sums invested >364 days 14,500 14,500 14,500 14,500 14,500

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing

       under 12 months Note - Whilst the Council is reopening the Housing 

       12 months and within 24 months Revenue Account (HRA). There are no liabilities

       24 months and within 5 years within the HRA, so these amounts refer to non

       5 years and within 10 years HRA amounts

       10 years and above

Based on the Authority's estimate of most likely requirement for 

external debt.

This section of indicators reflect the limits attributed to long term 

borrowing with a fixed Interest rate. The Council keep these limits at 

100% to ensure that an instant change can be made to long term 

borrowing when approved by the Treasury Management Group.

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS Notes

Annual actual borrowing estimates.

The affordable borrowing limit determined in compliance with the 

Local Government Act 2003. This sum can not exceed the CFR.

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS DECEMBER 2021

61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

Investment 
Strategy Report 
2022/23 

 

63



 2 

Contents 
 
Background ...................................................................................................... 3 

Treasury Management Investments ................................................................. 3 

Service Investments - Loans ............................................................................ 3 

Table 1 - Loans for service purposes ............................................................... 4 

Commercial Investments - Property ................................................................. 5 

Proportionality .................................................................................................. 7 

Table 2 - Proportionality of Commercial Property Income ................................ 7 

Capacity, Skills and Culture ............................................................................. 7 

Investment Indicators ....................................................................................... 8 

 

 

  

64



 3 

Background 

 
The authority invests its money for three broad purposes: 
 

• The Council has surplus cash as a result of its day to day activities, for 
example when income is received in advance of expenditure (known as 
Treasury Management Investments) 

• to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other 
organisations (known as service investments); 

• to achieve a number of corporate objectives for Regeneration, 
Economic and Housing Development  and achievement of the 
Council’s Efficiency Strategy through the purchase and building of 
property (known as commercial investments) 

 
This Strategy meets the requirements of statutory guidance issued by the 
government in 2018 and focuses on the second and third of these investment 
categories, with the first, Treasury Management Investments being covered in 
more detail in the 22/23 Treasury Management Strategy report. 
 
 

Treasury Management Investments 

The authority typically receives its income in cash (e.g. from taxes and grants) 
before it pays for its expenditure in cash (e.g. through payroll and invoices).  It 
also holds reserves for future expenditure and collects local taxes on behalf of 
other local authorities and central government.  These activities, plus the 
timing of borrowing decisions, lead to a cash surplus which is invested in 
accordance with guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA).   

 
The balance of Treasury Management Investments is expected to fluctuate 
between £10m and £60m during the 2022/23 financial year.  This is based on 
the authority having a constant £10m investment in the CCLA property fund, 
alongside having access to one current account and four money market 
funds, each with an internal limit of £10m.   
 
The contribution that these investments make to the objectives of the Council 
is to support effective treasury management activities 
 
 

Service Investments - Loans 

The Council lends money to local residents, employees, businesses and local 
charities to support local public services and to help the Council achieve its 
Corporate Objectives, through stimulating local economic growth, 
regeneration of the local area, and increased provision of affordable Housing. 

 
The largest loan currently forecast is to a Council Subsidiary to accelerate 
delivery of both housing and infrastructure and seek to increase the 

65



 4 

percentage of affordable housing on a development.  Without this loan the 
additional community benefit desired by the Council would not have been 
delivered by the private sector.  By providing this loan the Council has helped 
to meet the corporate objective for an increased provision and a more diverse 
mix of housing as well as accelerating delivery. 

 
The main risk when making service loans is that the borrower will be unable to 
repay the principal lent and/or the interest due.  In order to limit the risk, and 
ensure that the total exposure to service loans remains proportionate to both 
the size and aspirations of the Council, upper limits on the outstanding loans 
to each category of borrower are detailed in the table below: 
 
Table 1 - Loans for service purposes 

 

Category of Borrower 

31/03/2021 actual 2022/23 

Balance 
Outstanding 

£’000 

Loss 
Allowance 

£’000 

Net Figure in 
Accounts 
£’000 

Approved 
Limit 
£’000 

Subsidiaries 24,500 0 22,500 43,100 

Businesses 2,500 0 2,500 8,000 

Local Residents – Mortgages 8 0 8 8 

Employees – Loans 117 0 117 
30% of 

employee 
salary 

Total 27,125 0 27,125  

 
 

Due to the nature and timing of these loans, the limits will be monitored 
throughout the year, and should any new loans be identified for approval, 
limits will be adjusted accordingly and reported to Cabinet. 
 
Accounting standards require the Council to set aside loss allowance for 
loans, reflecting the likelihood of non-payment.  The figures for loans in the 
Council’s statement of accounts are shown net of this loss allowance.  
However, the Council makes every reasonable effort to collect the full sum 
lent and has appropriate credit control arrangements in place to recover 
overdue repayments.  Details of the recovery process are outlined in the Write 
Off of Irrecoverable Debts report, presented for approval to Cabinet annually. 
 
The authority assesses the risk of loss before entering into and whilst holding 
service loans by:   

 

• Assessing the markets in which the Council is looking to invest, 
in order to ascertain why the market is currently not delivering 
the outcomes the Council requires through its Corporate 
Objectives.  If this is due to financial reasons the Council will 
then assess whether a service loan would provide the means to 
achieve the desired outcome. 

66



 5 

 

• Upon determining that a service loan may be required, the 
Council will then seek external advice where necessary, this may 
include the use of external legal, financial and tax advice as 
appropriate. 

 

• A credit check and analysis of the beneficiary’s financial 
statements will also be carried out to determine their financial 
strength.  Loans will only be entered into should the beneficiary 
be of a suitable strength, and additional security may be sought, 
for instance, through a charge on land, should the Council 
require this.  

 

• In order to ensure the objectives of the Council are delivered, the 
terms of the loan may oblige the borrower to meet certain 
criteria, for instance to deliver a new road to aid congestion 
before houses are built, or to seek to provide additional 
affordable housing on a housing development. 

 

• Where possible, the Council will also place a staff member or 
one of its subsidiaries staff on the board of the project, in order to 
ensure effective on-going monitoring of the project is maintained. 

 

• Once the loan has been made, the Council will continue to 
monitor credit ratings and financial statements of the beneficiary 
half yearly to ensure loss adjustments can be made accurately 
and in a timely manner should the beneficiary’s credit rating or 
financial performance decrease. 

 
 

Commercial and Housing Investments 

The Council invests in commercial and housing investments with the primary 
intention for regeneration, economic and housing development, either through 
the direct impact of investments within the borough, or through the indirect 
impact of investments within the wider region by providing additional income 
that is then spent on regeneration, economy and housing within the local 
area. 
 
Investments in commercial property and housing follow broadly the same 
assessment of the risk of loss before entering into contractual arrangements 
by: 

 

• Assessing covenant strength - This includes, but is not limited to, credit 
checks on potential tenants or strategic partners, meetings with the 
senior management of potential tenants of large value transactions, a 
detailed review of their accounting statements, and charges on land 
where necessary in order to have security over any investment. 
 

• Assessing a thorough financial business case - costing not only the 

67



 6 

purchase price or amount invested, but also associated long term costs 
such as future maintenance and void costs.  This includes setting aside 
provisions as follows: 

 
a) The Council charges an interest adjustment on each investment.  

This is where, although the Council predominantly borrows at 
cheap variable rates, any financial business case is charged at 
higher long term rates.  This ensures should interest rates rise in 
the future, the Council will still make a financial return.  This 
adjustment is taken to the Interest Rate Reserve, an earmarked 
reserve used to mitigate the risk of future rate rises affecting the 
Councils ability to provide services. 
 

b) The Council also charges a void adjustment to each business 
case.  This reserves a percentage of the income so that when 
the initial lease period expires, the Council has enough funds set 
aside to cover the loss of income and void costs such as empty 
rates for up to 12 months should that tenant decide not to renew 
a lease, leaving the Council having to find a new tenant.  This 
adjustment is taken to the Property Reserve, an earmarked 
reserve used to ensure a future loss of tenant does not affect the 
Councils ability to provide services.   

 
c) The Council also has a similar maintenance reserve, where, 

depending on the age and condition of the building, between 5 
and 10% of all income is put in reserve each year to cover future 
maintenance works to the buildings.  This Maintenance Reserve 
is then used to fund the Repairs and Renewals Programme 
prepared by the Property Services Team. 

 

• Where housing is delivered through one of the Council’s housing 
companies, the provisions for maintenance will have already been 
taken through a maintenance contract prior to the payment of income 
to the Council.  The Council therefore budgets for and receives, just the 
net income from Housing rental income.  

 

• Decisions on property purchases are also subject to additional levels of 
scrutiny through staff meetings.   Discussions will occur between 
members of Corporate Leadership Team, Asset Management, 
Planning, Legal Services and Financial Services to scrutinise the due 
diligence that has been carried out, and to scrutinise financial business 
cases to ensure potential purchases are sound. 

 

• Once the property has been purchased, the Council will continue to 
monitor credit ratings and financial statements of the tenant half yearly 
to ensure loss adjustments can be made accurately and in a timely 
manner should the tenant’s credit rating or financial performance 
decrease. 
 
 

68



 7 

 

Proportionality 

The Council is dependent on profit generating investment activity to achieve a 

balanced revenue budget. The table below shows the extent to which the 

expenditure planned to meet the service delivery objectives and place making 

role of the Council is dependent on achieving the expected net profit from 

investments over the lifecycle of the Medium Term Financial Plan. The 

Council maintains large reserves in order to mitigate the impact of any loss of 

revenue income from its commercial properties, and monitors performance 

quarterly in order to ensure any possible impact can be identified, controlled 

and managed as effectively as possible 

Table 2 - Proportionality of Commercial Property Income 

 

Proportionality 
2020/21 
actual 
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 
£’000 

2022/23 
budget 
£’000 

2023/24 
budget 
£’000 

2024/25 
budget 
£’000 

Gross Service Expenditure 81,452 65,312 66,763 66,763 66,763 

Commercial Property Income 13,506 13,530 13,663 13,663 13,663 

Proportionality of 
Commercial Property Income 

17% 21% 20% 20% 20% 

 

Capacity, Skills and Culture 

Staff within Treasury Management hold quarterly treasury meetings with the 
Treasury Management Review Group (TMRG).  This is a Group consisting of 
the Leader of the Council, and containing members of the Cabinet, 
Councillors from the party in power and the opposition parties, alongside 
senior representation from the Finance Team.  The basis of these meetings is 
for staff to give TMRG an update on the current borrowing and investment 
position of the Council, as well as to update on upcoming governance 
changes, legislation and accounting changes, or legal changes that may 
affect the Council and its investment decision making going forward.   This is 
then followed by questions from the TMRG to further their understanding of 
the key areas surrounding both investment and borrowing decision making, 
and to enable them to make informed decisions surrounding Investments. 
 
During 2018/19 and 2019/20 the Council has held training sessions on 
Treasury Management and the current borrowing and investment 
environment, led by our Treasury Advisers, Arlingclose, another of these 
sessions is planned for 2022/23.  This is a formal training evening, where both 
staff and advisers brief all Councillors on the current investment position of 
the Council, future investment position and possible changes to governance 
that may impact future decisions.  A questions and answers session is held 
after the briefing where Councillors are encouraged to ask questions to both 
staff and Arlingclose to further their understanding of the way the Council 

69



 8 

makes decisions on both investments and borrowing. 
 

To ensure staff have the correct knowledge and skills to inform investment 
decisions, the team currently includes: 

 
• A Finance Team with five CIPFA qualified accountants, all with over ten 

years of experience in Local Government accounting, and one CIMA 
qualified accountant. 
 

• An Asset Management Team including a number of Chartered 
Surveyors with over 10 years’ experience who are members of the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), two of which are RICS 
Registered Valuers. They are regulated by their professional body 
(RICS) and comply with the RICS rules in relation to conduct and 
Continuing Professional Development. They maintain their knowledge 
and skills through regular technical updates from appropriate bodies.  

 

• A Legal Team with 4 qualified solicitors, 2 Chartered Legal Executives, 
a locum barrister and a trainee Legal Executive and a Trainee 
Solicitor.  This includes 2 with over 10 years’ in Local Government; 5 
with significant property and related commercial transaction knowledge; 
3 with extensive planning experience and 3 with substantial regulatory 
and governance background.  
 

When negotiating commercial deals, there is mandatory representation from 
both the Council’s finance and legal staff in all stages.  This is to ensure that 
both the prudential and legal framework that local authorities operate within is 
considered.  Once it is ensured the Council would be operating within its 
powers, Finance and Legal representation will stay at the forefront of any 
decision made, and commercial deals must be approved internally by the 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) before being formally approved by Cabinet. 
 
 

Investment Indicators 

The Council has set investment indicators to monitor the future performance 
of Investments and allow elected councillors and the public to assess the 
Council’s total risk exposure as a result of its investment decisions.  Appendix 
3A shows the current Investment Indicators 
 

70



Investment Indicators      Appendix 3A 

Security 

The Council considers a property investment to be secure if its accounting valuation 

is at or higher than the amount of debt currently outstanding for the asset.  

Security Indicator 

Property 
Purchases 

2018/19 
actual 
£’000 

2019/20 
actual 
£’000 

2020/21        
actual  
£’000 

2021/22 
forecast 

£’000 

2022/23 
forecast 

£’000 

Asset Valuations 210,484 201,401 197,566 197,566 197,566 

Debt Outstanding 205,706 203,674 201,580 199,418 197,180 

Security Value 4,778 (2,441) (4,014) (1,865) 386 

 

This indicator has fallen from 2018/19 as asset valuations have fallen, although the 

Council has continued to make prudent provision for the repayment of debt.  This 

indicator is forecast to improve as the Council’s policy on the repayment of debt 

increases the security value over time. 

Fluctuations in value are common, as valuations are predominantly market driven 

and the Covid 19 pandemic caused a reduction in valuations over the last 2 financial 

years, and also due to a general decline in the retail sector over a similar period 

which has reduced some values however in the main, the retail within the Council’s 

property portfolio is not high risk and falls into the subsectors which are less affected 

by the current market changes.   

Valuations are also impacted by the age of the Council’s property portfolio.  As the 

Council has acquired assets, these are often reduced in value in the initial years 

after purchase, as associated costs from the purchase such as stamp duty and 

professional fees are discounted when valued but remain within the debt outstanding 

figure.  The effect of this is reduced over time due to the Council’s policy on the 

repayment of debt. 

The condition of the Council’s property portfolio is closely monitored by the asset 

management team, and the cost of maintaining the buildings is covered both by the 

maintenance reserve seen later in this appendix, as well as through repairing leases, 

whereby tenants are responsible for keeping the buildings they occupy in good 

condition.   This ensures fluctuations are market driven, rather than impairments due 

to a building being in disrepair. 

The Council currently has no plans for the sale of its portfolio and has actively 

engaged with tenants during the pandemic to ensure the security of income, as can 

be seen from the yield indicators later in this appendix. 

71



 

Liquidity 

Compared with other investment types, property is relatively difficult to sell and 

convert to cash at short notice.  Therefore, in order to assess liquidity, the Council 

monitors the income stream attached to properties, a much more liquid asset, 

comparing budgets to forecasts and actuals. 

Liquidity Indicator  

Revenue Income from Properties 
2020/21 actual 

£’000 
2021/22 forecast 

£’000 
2022/23 budget 

£’000 

Budget 10,941 12,546 12,400 

Actual/Forecast at Year End 10,818 12,546 n/a 

Percentage Attained 98.9% 100% n/a 

 

Yield 

The Council monitors property yields both prior to purchase and post purchase, to 

ensure the portfolio makes a financial surplus.  

Yield Indicator 

Property Purchases Yield 
2019/20 

 % 
2021/22 

 % 
2022/23  

% 

Gross Yield 6.56% 6.84% 6.85% 

 

Service Investment – Loans 

The Council also monitors and reports on the outstanding balance and potential loss 

allowances applied to service investment loans.  This will ensure that appropriate 

action can be taken should the loss allowance begin to rise.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

72



Limit and loss allowance indicator 

Category of Borrower 

31/03/2021 actual 2022/23 

Balance 
Outstanding 

£’000 

Loss 
Allowance 

£’000 

Net Figure in 
Accounts £’000 

Approved 
Limit £’000 

Subsidiaries 24,500 0 22,500 43,100 

Businesses 2,500 0 2,500 8,000 

Local Residents – Mortgages 8 0 8 8 

Employees – Loans 117 0 117 
30% of 

employee 
salary 

Total 27,125 0 27,125  

 

Commercial Investments - Voids and Maintenance 

As described in the main Appendix, each purchase by the Council makes allowance 

for funds to be transferred to reserves at the end of each financial year to cover 

unforeseen void and maintenance costs.  To ensure these reserves are maintained 

to the correct level, balances will be regularly reported as part of the Prudential 

Indicators.  These balances will also be monitored through the Medium Term 

Financial Plan and Budget setting processes, and both overall balances of these 

reserves, and individual property balances will be assessed to ensure they continue 

to provide the correct level of risk management.   

Void and Maintenance Reserve Indicator  

Property Reserves 
2020/21 actual 

£’000 
2021/22 forecast 

£’000 
2022/23 budget 

£’000 

Void Reserve 2,472 2,863 3,254 

Maintenance Reserve 1,154 1,487 1,821 

Total Reserve 3,626 4,350 5,075 

 

Commercial Investments – Vacancy Levels 

Monitoring vacancy levels (voids) ensures the property portfolio is being managed 

effectively (including marketing and tenant relations) to ensure the portfolio is as 

productive as possible 

Vacancy Level Indicator 

Vacancy Levels 2018/19 actual  2019/20 actual  2020/21 actual  

Square Footage Vacant 5362 Sq Feet 3298 Sq Feet 10,249 Sq Feet 

% of lettable properties 0.52% 0.32% 1.00% 

 

73



In addition, the performance of the property portfolio and its impact on reserves is 

monitored quarterly as part of the Property Performance report.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

74



 
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

8 February 2022 

INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING STATEMENT  

FOR THE PERIOD 1 OCTOBER 2021 TO 31 DECEMBER 2021 

Report of the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting)  

 

Recommendations  

It is recommended that Audit and Resources Committee considers the Internal 
Audit Monitoring Statement for the third quarter of 2021/22. 

 

 

Summary 
 

 The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 was approved by this Committee on 9 
March 2021. Progress made against the plan for quarter 3 is now reported 
(Appendix A). 

 Progress made on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations is 
detailed in Appendix B. 

 

Statutory Powers 
S.151 Local Government Act 1972 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 
 
 

 

 

75

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s risk 
management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, work 
effectively and support ambitions of the Council.  Internal Audit helps the 
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes. 

Introduction 

2. The Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 was approved by this Committee on 9 March 
2021. Performance against the Annual Audit Plan for 2021/22 will be reported 
to Members of the Committee periodically throughout the year as per the 
Internal Audit Charter which was approved by this Committee on 9 March 2021. 
This report is the third monitoring statement for the current financial year 
(2021/22) and outlines audit activity for the period 1 October 2021 to 31 
December 2021, as summarised in appendices A and B. 

Resources 

3. From 1 April 2021 the in-house Internal Audit Team comprises a Head of 
Internal Audit (currently vacant), one full-time Senior Internal Auditor (currently 
Acting Chief Internal Auditor), one full-time Auditor and one Audit Apprentice.  

4. The Internal Audit Apprentice, having completed the Level 4 apprenticeship 
scheme early in 2021/22, has commenced the Level 7 Internal Audit 
apprenticeship scheme. This will take approximately 3 years to complete and 
will result in the achievement of the professional qualification, Chartered 
Internal Auditor CIIA due to be completed by September/October 2024. 

Internal Audit Activity  

5. Appendix A shows an analysis of planned days against actual days for the 
period 1 October 2021 to 31 December 2021. The Plan remains fluid and 
flexible and continues to be closely monitored by the Chief Internal Auditor 
(Acting). Further revisions may be necessary over the coming months and any 
revisions to the Plan will be agreed with this Committee.   

6. During the third quarter the following reviews carried forward from 2021/22 
continued and will be subject to comment in a later Monitoring Report: 

 Asset Management 

 Treasury Management 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Payroll 

76



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

7. During the quarter the following reviews from the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan 
were completed: 

 Accounting for Fixed Assets - the review has concluded that there is a 
good system of internal controls to ensure what is recorded in the Fixed 
Asset Register agrees to the Council’s financial systems and the 
Statement of Accounts. Depreciation of the sample of fixed assets (VPE) 
examined had been calculated in-line with Council policies and IFRS 
(IAS16) standards. There is however a weakness in the current system 
of internal control in the physical verification/reconciliation of VPE fixed 
assets to the Fixed Asset Register (notably, but not exclusively, fixed 
assets recorded under ‘vehicles’).  As a result, nine priority 3 
recommendations have been made. A new asset recording system had 
recently been introduced which should introduce controls to mitigate 
many of these recommendations. 

 Fleet Management - This review proved to be a high-level review of Fleet 
Management. Staff resource issues, migration of fleet data to a new fleet 
management system and working remotely meant that detailed testing 
was unable to be carried out. It should be noted that whilst there has 
been a global pandemic, a fully operational fleet service is still being 
provided during such difficult times. This is on top of difficulties with 
staffing resources and new fleet management systems and technologies 
being introduced; staff at The Depot should be commended for that.  
Nevertheless, this report has highlighted some potential control 
weaknesses, although the overall assessment is adequate. At the time 
of the audit, fleet management responsibilities appeared to be shared 
across a number of officers due to the vacancy of the Fleet Manager 
role; with an informal delegation of responsibilities. Delegation of 
responsibility needed to be formalised and approved - this has now been 
resolved. Fleetwave appears to have potential to provide a professional 
and fully integrated fleet management system which also now includes a 
stock control system. There are however potential weaknesses in 
controls currently because data is still being migrated from Roadbase 
and other hardcopy systems. Time and resource are required to ensure 
that Fleetwave is fully functioning as soon as possible, and key staff are 
fully cognisant with the new system.  As a result, six priority 3 and three 
priority 4 recommendations have been made.       

 Strategic Planning - This audit has concluded that an adequate 
assurance opinion (both of Control and Compliance) can be drawn on 
the current system of internal control within the team. However, this 
review has also encountered some issues raised which has resulted in 
recommendations around the approval process being documented and 
easily available to staff demonstrating the steps followed when seeking 
approval of different types of strategic projects, and that there is a more 
complete record of the development of strategic recommendations which 
are then put to the relevant decision body as identified in the 
Constitution. It has been found that there is sufficient supporting 
evidence for the strategic work completed by the team. The drafting of 
some operational and objectives guidance notes has been 
recommended to ensure clarity across the team and the establishment of 

77



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

an operational risk register for the team has been made. Seven priority 3 
and one priority 4 recommendations have been made. 

 Construction and Maintenance (Neighbourhood Services) (formerly 
Small Works – Direct Services) – (1 recommendation) – this is the first 
review conducted by Internal Audit in this area. The review has 
concluded that there was a limited system of control and that compliance 
against controls was limited. 15 recommendations were made, one of 
which was graded as priority 2 (high risk). This recommendation 
concerned services which were advertised on the EBC website as being 
offered by the team which were no longer available. It was 
recommended that the website be updated to ensure customers were 
provided with the correct information of services that were available. This 
recommendation has been addressed and the website updated.  

 Corporate Governance – the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) input into the 
annual governance review process as part of the annual review of 
governance arrangements overseen by the Executive Head of 
Governance. The Annual Governance Statement was approved by this 
Committee on 11 January 2022. The annual review of Corporate 
Governance will be included in the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan.  

 
8. During the third quarter the following reviews from the 2021/22 Annual Internal 

Audit Plan commenced which continue into the fourth quarter and will be 
subject to comment in a later monitoring report: 

 Accounting System 

 Housing Benefits & Council Tax Support 

 Local Taxation (Council Tax & NNDR) 

 Developers Contributions/CIL 

 Bank Reconciliation Interim (follow up review) 

 Planning Fees (follow up review) Transparency Code 2015 Compliance 

 Information Legislation 

9. During the quarter Internal Audit continued working with staff responsible for 
the development of new systems and processes and, as reported to this 
Committee previously, is responsible for reviewing and commenting upon 
systems of internal control prior to going live.  

Audit Recommendations 

10. Appendix B provides details of the recommendations that remain outstanding 
from the 2019/20 and 2020/21 internal audits, along with the level of assurance 
given.  It will continue to develop over the year as 2021/22 audit work is 
completed. 
 

78



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

11. At the time of writing this report there are no grade 1 or 2 recommendations 
outstanding from the reviews completed in 2021/22 to date. Four priority 2 (high 
risk) recommendations remain outstanding from 2020/21 and nine priority 2 
(high risk) recommendations from 2019/20. The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) 
is currently satisfied that appropriate action is being taken to address the 
outstanding recommendations and considers that there are no matters that 
require escalation or further input from this Committee. 

 
12. 2020/21 Audit Reviews (4 recommendations): 

 Local Taxation (Follow up review) (1 recommendation) - the 2019/20 
review concluded that there was an adequate system of control but that 
the compliance against controls was limited. 26 recommendations were 
made, 4 of which were graded as priority 2 (high risk). All 
recommendations were followed up and eight recommendations have 
been restated, two of which are graded as priority 2 (high risk) and one 
further recommendation has been made. It should be noted that the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has meant the payment of business 
support grants has taken priority and unfortunately staff have not been 
able to give the audit recommendations their full attention. An update has 
been provided to Internal Audit by the Senior Revenues Specialist which 
confirms that one of the priority 2 recommendations has been 
implemented and the second, regarding consideration to be given to 
alternative means of collecting money from long term debtors is in the 
process of being implemented; recovery methods are dictated by 
legislation but the Revenues Team will be taking part in a multi-agency 
risk management meeting which helps vulnerable residents who have 
multiple debts.  

 Building Control Partnership – (1 recommendation) The review concluded 
that there was an adequate framework of control in place, however there 
is limited compliance with this framework of control. Although a 
Partnership Agreement between Eastleigh Borough Council and 
Southampton City Council is in place, the signing of a Deed of Variation to 
this agreement was placed on hold pending a complete review of the 
Partnership Agreement. As such, compliance to these ‘control’ documents 
is weak. Current Building Control processes and procedures between the 
councils are not wholly reflected in the Partnership Agreement. As a 
result, 9 recommendations were made, one of these was assessed as 
priority 2 (high risk) regarding the need to draft a new Building Control 
agreement which that reflects current practice, processes and procedures. 
Discussion between the parties has taken place and the final draft of the 
Partnership Agreement is in circulation and is expected to be completed in 
Quarter 4. 

 Commercial Rents Follow Up Review – (2 recommendations) The last full 
review of Commercial Rents was carried out in 2019/20. That review 
concluded that there was a limited system of control and that the 
compliance against controls was also limited. The 25 recommendations 
arising from that review were followed up and it was found that 10 have 
been fully implemented, 3 have been partially implemented and 11 are still 
outstanding. 1 recommendation has not been restated as the risk has 
been accepted and 1 new recommendation has been made. The 

79



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

outstanding 2 priority 2 recommendations are around storage and 
management of documents and electronic information, and maintaining 
adequate audit trails. The risks around data management were found to 
be managed as far as possible with the current system, and a review of 
development work is being undertaken. Work to improve storage and 
management of documents is underway and a plan of action and 
timeframes for implementation will be provided shortly. 

 
2019/20 Audit Reviews (9 recommendations): 

 Bank Reconciliation (2 recommendations) – these recommendations are 
regarding the need to produce a balanced reconciliation. Process notes 
have been drawn up are currently at draft awaiting checking by a Finance 
Specialist, with detailed reconciliation work ongoing to achieve a balanced 
position. An internal audit update review is underway, working with the 
Chief Accountant and giving regard to the recent external audit results 
report findings. 

 Accounting for Fixed Assets (Land and Property) (1 recommendation) – 
this recommendation is to reconcile the Computerised Land and Property 
System (CLP) with the Finance Asset Register as part of the development 
of a new Asset Management System. This has been delayed due to the 
new system not yet having been implemented; however, work is 
progressing to ensure data management is optimal for the reconciliation of 
both systems annually. The Executive Head of Finance & Housing 
Programme is comfortable that the two systems are not currently 
reconciled as there are processes within the accounting policies which 
ensures the Fixed Asset Registers are complete and the values are also 
checked by external audit annually. 

 Planning Fees (6 recommendations) – A plan for implementation of audit 
recommendations has been drafted and implementation dates are being 
agreed. Four of the original ten priority 2 (high risk) recommendations 
have been implemented to date. Of the remaining six recommendations, 
five are unable to resolve without a wider digital strategy input due to a 
wider corporate impact that expands beyond a Planning Fees issue that 
the Development Management service can resolve. The timetable for 
addressing these will need to be agreed as part of a wider review of the 
Digital Strategy. The final recommendation is subject to ongoing work. 
Given the time that has elapsed since the audit was completed, it has 
been agreed that the Internal Audit Team will carry out a follow up review 
of the high-risk recommendations which began in Quarter 3, to assess the 
level of risk exposure. 

 Event Management (1 recommendation) – three priority 2 
recommendations were originally made regarding a review by Legal 
Services of the published terms and conditions of using Council owned 
land to host events and a review of use of Salesforce Discussion Groups 
as a way of administering events. Two of the three have been 
implemented; the third, due to staffing changes, wasn’t progressed but 
has been reassigned with the aim to prioritise completion during Spring 
2022.  

 

80



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

13. Corporate Leadership Board has reviewed the positions with the 
implementation of audit recommendations and where necessary any 
outstanding non-responses to audit reports/recommendations are being 
pursued; or Corporate Leadership Board are prepared to accept the risk in the 
short term when considered against other priority works across the Council. 
 

Financial Implications 

14. There are no significant financial implications arising from this report. The 
report is intended to report on progress made against the Annual Internal Audit 
Plan 2021/22. 

Risk Assessment 

15. The Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) must establish and maintain a system to 
monitor the disposition of audit results communicated to management. By not 
monitoring the progress made with the implementation of audit 
recommendations, the Chief Internal Auditor (Acting) would be failing to meet 
requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Internal Audit 
Charter. This report provides Management and this Committee with details of 
the progress made.  

16. The Internal Audit team has been working remotely since 17 March 2020. The 
team are now able to access Council owned sites where necessary to review 
physical records.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

17. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report and an Equality 

Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

18. There are no proposals within this report to assess with regard to climate 
change and environmental implications. 

Conclusion 

19. The planned time and actual time are closely monitored to ensure where 
possible any variation is kept to a minimum. However, variations do occur and 
where necessary any impact on the plan is reported to this Committee.   

20. Work to complete the Audit Plan 2021/22 is being closely monitored against the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic as work to support the response and recovery 
is continuing. 

 

LISA SMY 
CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR (ACTING)   

 

81



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Date: 11th January 2022 
Contact Officer: Lisa Smy  
Tel No: 02380 688015 
e-mail: lisa.smy@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: Two 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 

 Internal Audit Charter 2021/22 
 
 

82



Appendix A 
 

Internal Audit Monitoring Statement - Quarter 2 2021/22

2021/22 Total   

Plan Days*

Q3 Planned days Q3 Actual Days Variance

Direct time (attributable to a specific audit review)

Major Systems 130 18.50 11.25 -7.25

Corporate Governance 26 9.50 5.75 -3.75

Corporate Support 109 28.75 14.00 -14.75

Corporate Systems 10 9.00 0.00 -9.00

Finance & Housing Programme 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Assets & Project Delivery 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Governance 35 11.00 10.00 -1.00

Customer Care 15 3.00 2.75 -0.25

Organisational Development 30 1.00 1.25 0.25

Strategic Development 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Environment 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Health & Wellbeing 8 0.00 0.00 0.00

Planning & Economy 15 19.50 28.50 9.00

Neighbourhood Services 30 4.00 4.25 0.25

Contract Audit 6 0.00 0.00 0.00

Members Scrutiny 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Consultancy/Improvement (VFM) 20 3.00 3.00 0.00

Investigations 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prior Year Audit Completion 20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Help & Advice 20 12.00 4.25 -7.75

Covid-19 - Response and Support 20 0.00 7.75 7.75

Total direct days 584 119.25 92.75 -26.50

Indirect time (not attributable to a specific audit review) 

Annual Leave/Sick leave/Other leave 26.25 26.25 0.00

Training/Management/Development/Admin 40.50 64.50 24.00

Total in-direct days 243 66.75 90.75 24.00

Grand Total 827 186.00 183.50 -2.50

* as approved by Audit & Resources Committee 9th March 2021 

83



Appendix B 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Progress of the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations - 2021/22 Quarter 3

Audit Title A
u

d
it

 R
is

k 
In

d
ex

* 

H
ig

h
 (

H
),

 M
e

d
iu

m
 (

M
),

 

Lo
w

 (
L)

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

D
at

e 
o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
ep

o
rt

D
at

e 
o

f 
R

es
p

o
n

se

To
ta

l N
o

. o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

(g
ra

d
ed

 1
-4

)

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 
(c

ri
ti

ca
l 

ri
sk

) 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
- 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 a

ct
io

n
**

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

2 
(h

ig
h

 r
is

k)
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s*

**

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

2 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

 N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 
o

r 
2

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g/

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

A
gr

e
ed

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

d
at

e

2021/22 Internal Audit Reviews:

Accounting for Fixed Assets  H Adequate Adequate 11.10.21 18.10.21 9 0 - 0 - 0

Accounting System H In progress

Cash Collection & Banking H Paused

Recruitment & Selection M Paused

Fleet Management H Adequate Adequate 02.12.21 23.11.21 9 0 - 0 - 0

Strategic Planning H Adequate Adequate 12.11.21 12.10.21 8 0 - 0 - 0

Construction & Maintenance (Neighbourhood Services) M Limited Limited 23.11.21 18.10.21 15 0 0 1 1 0

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Support H In progress

Local Taxation (Council Tax & NNDR) H In progress

Developers Contributions H In progress

Bank Reconciliation (Interim follow up review) H In progress

Information Legislation H Draft report issued 

Planning Fees (Follow up review) H In progress

Transparency Code 2015 - compliance H In progress

Total 2021/22 41 0 0 1 1 0

Grading

84



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Title A
u

d
it

 R
is

k 
In

d
ex

* 

H
ig

h
 (

H
),

 M
e

d
iu

m
 (

M
),

 

Lo
w

 (
L)

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

D
at

e 
o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
ep

o
rt

D
at

e 
o

f 
R

es
p

o
n

se

To
ta

l N
o

. o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

(g
ra

d
ed

 1
-4

)

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 
(c

ri
ti

ca
l 

ri
sk

) 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
 

** N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

2 
(h

ig
h

 r
is

k)
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

**

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

2 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

 N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 
o

r 
2

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g/

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

A
gr

e
ed

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

d
at

e

2020/21 Internal Audit Reviews:

Accounts Receivable (Debtors) H In progress 

Corporate Governance H Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 approved 11 January 2022

Asset Management H In progress 

Building Control Partnership  M Adequate Limited 18.06.2021 18.06.2021 9 0 - 1 0 1 31.10.21

Payroll H Draft report issued 

Commercial Rents Follow Up Review H n/a n/a 06.06.2021 06.06.2021 5 0 - 2 0 2 31.01.22

Local Taxation Follow Up Review H n/a n/a 07.12.2020

Due 

21.04.2021 9 0 - 2 1 1 30.10.21

Total 2020/21 23 0 0 5 1 4

Grading

85



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Title A
u

d
it

 R
is

k 
In

d
ex

* 

H
ig

h
 (

H
),

 M
e

d
iu

m
 (

M
),

 

Lo
w

 (
L)

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

D
at

e 
o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
ep

o
rt

D
at

e 
o

f 
R

es
p

o
n

se

To
ta

l N
o

. o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

(g
ra

d
ed

 1
-4

)

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 
(c

ri
ti

ca
l 

ri
sk

) 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
 

** N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

2 
(h

ig
h

 r
is

k)
 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

**

N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

2 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fu
lly

 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d

 N
o

. o
f 

G
ra

d
e 

1 
o

r 
2

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g/

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

A
gr

e
ed

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

d
at

e

Bank Reconciliation H Limited Limited 18.05.20 16.06.20 2 0 - 2 0 2 31.03.22

Accounting for Fixed Assets - Land & Property H Limited Limited 02.06.20 27.07.20 7 0 - 1 0 1 31.03.22

Event Management M Limited Limited 22.08.19 04.05.20 7 0 - 3 2 1 30.09.21

Planning Fees M Limited Limited 11.06.20 20.07.20 32 0 - 10 4 6 TBC

One Horton Heath H Limited Limited 15.01.21 21.12.20 24 0 - 8 8 0 n/a

Total 2019/20 72 0 0 24 14 10

136 0 0 30 16 14

*** Grade 2 (Definition): High risk - A significant control weakness as key control is either missing, not working or not being adhered to. Exposes the Council to a high risk.

Grading

2019/20 Internal Audit Reviews with outstanding recommendations

Total (overall)

* Risk index is taken from the Annual Plan as approved by the Audit & Resources Committee. Risk based strategy forms appendix 1 of the Annual Plan and provides further explanation of the process.

** Grade 1 (Definition): Critical risk - A major or serious control weakness as a key control is either missing, failing or not being adhered to. Exposes the Council to a critical risk.

86



 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

TUESDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 2022  

REPAIR AND RENEWAL PLAN 2019/20 - 2023/24 UPDATE 2022 

Report of the Lead Building Surveyor (Property Services)  

 

Recommendation: 

It is recommended that  Audit and Resources Committee notes the progress against 
the Repair and Renewal Plan 2019/20 - 2023/24. 

 

 

Summary 
 
The Council owns multiple operational buildings allowing the Council to deliver a wide 
range of front-line services and community benefits, as well as owning a successful 
commercial property portfolio that is forecast to deliver a net revenue surplus to the 
Council of in excess of £9M in 2021/22.  

Focus for Scrutiny 

The Repairs and Renewals Plan is developed to span 2019/20 – 2023/24 to enable the 
Council’s operational and commercial buildings to be maintained in a good state of repair. 
This report details the progress against the approved plan. 

Statutory Powers 
 
* Local Government Act 1972, Sections 111 and 151 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. This report provides an overview of the Council’s property portfolio and 
highlights areas where continued future investment is needed over the 
remaining two years of the Repair and Renewal Plan to ensure these assets 
remain both operationally and commercially effective.  

2. This report provides a view on progress of the Repairs and Renewal (R and R) 
programme which has been affected by COVID-19 since March 2020 due to 
restrictions, staff absence and limited contractor availability. The initial 
programme was reviewed and amended in March 2020 following the first 
COVID-19 lockdown with consideration for its urgency and priority to replace 
and renew defective and unreliable components to the Council’s operational 

87

Agenda Item 9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

and investment buildings. (Refer to appendix 1 for latest plan 22/23). These 
works do not include future large-scale capital investment as this forms part of 
future and on-going work to determine the strategic direction of the Council’s 
property Portfolio.  

3. The Repairs and Renewal Plan allows the Council to continue to have a 
proactive and commercial approach to its property portfolio, actively 
supporting the corporate objectives of maintaining a sustainable environment 
and providing infrastructure to support a prosperous community. 

Introduction 

4. The Council holds an asset list for all Council owned and leased property 
excluding its Housing Assets. In determining the level of funding needed to 
maintain assets, the Property Services Team carried out site visits and desk 
top surveys of over 300 sites on this asset list to review the current condition 
of its built estate back in 2019. Since then, Property Services have carried out 
140 detailed building surveys and are aiming to ensure all sites are surveyed 
at least once every 24 months.  

5. The Repair and Renewal Plan for 2019/20-2023/24 was brought to this 
Committee for review in October 2019. Of the £4m budget planned for 
2019/20 to 2021/22 55% has been spent or committed. Delays have been 
experienced, primarily due to the Covid-19 pandemic and schemes have been 
deferred into future years dependent on priority.  

Impact of COVID-19 

6. Covid19 has affected the programme since March 2020 as the country went 
into lockdown and working from home was made compulsory for those who 
could. This prevented site visits to review and survey works covered within the 
Repair and Renewal Plan.  

7. Work on the plan was further impacted by the need for COVID-19 compliance 
when site visits were allowed. This prevented normal progress on site and 
planning of works as contractors followed Government guidance and ceased 
operations. As construction began to re-mobilise work restarted on the plan, 
with a concerted effort to utilise the benefits of vacant space created by 
lockdown measures. Direct services supported this, with the regular visual 
inspection of sites complying with safe systems of work. 

8. Operational Properties 

 The operational portfolio of property includes the following significant 
assets: 

 Itchen Valley (IVCP) and Lakeside Country Parks 

 Eastleigh House 

 The Point 

88



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Operational depots in Hedge End and Dutton Lane 

9. These buildings all require continuous planned investment to replace 
infrastructure and provide necessary compliance. This report quantifies the 
spend on operational properties over the remaining 2 years and it is intended 
that this report will continue to be updated annually. The Council will always 
minimise repairs and renewal costs whilst delivering value for money, and this 
will continue through this initial 5-year programme of works. 

10. Any new buildings acquired will be added to the asset list with any necessary 
expenditure upon purchase being covered within the initial business case. 

Commercial Properties 

11. The commercial portfolio includes industrial and retail parks, hotels, office 
blocks and leisure facilities such as:  

 The Ageas Bowl 

 Hilton Hotel 

 David Lloyd Centre 

 Black Horse House 

 Hampshire House 

 Omega House 

 Wessex House 

 Link 1 and 2 

 
12. Some of these assets require investment to replace infrastructure and ensure 

compliance. However, many of these properties are let on Full Repairing 
leases whereby the lessees are fully responsible for repairs. In addition, a 
proportion of the expenditure will be recoverable from tenant service charges 
with the remainder being funded from rental income. Several buildings 
including Black Horse House, Hampshire House, and Link 1 and 2 were 
constructed during the 1980/90s and will require further strategic 
decisions/investments to maintain their value. 
 

13. Any new buildings acquired will be added to the asset list with any necessary 
expenditure upon purchase being covered within the initial business case. 

14. Property Services have developed a programme of works and a delivery 
strategy in consultation with Finance. An updated schedule is provided within 
Appendix 1 to this update.  

89



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

15. The initial programme was reviewed and amended in March 2020 following 
the commencement of the first COVID-19 lockdown. 6 low priority projects 
have been deferred until the 2022/23 budget period and 7 projects were 
delayed during 2021/22. The programme was reprioritised, considering the 
COVID restrictions to enable other projects to be brought forward. This 
included replacement electrical infrastructure and improved structural fire 
safety to Black Horse House, an upgraded electrical supply to IVCP, Anti 
vandal doors and replacement roof sections to Mitchell Road Car Park, 
Mechanical service improvements to Eastleigh House, and some areas 
refurbished at The Point. 

Dilapidations 

16. The cost of repairs and renewals on the Councils commercial properties, 
where liability rests fully with the tenants under the terms of their leases is 
approx. 25% of the commercial portfolio. Costs for these repairs is covered by 
the tenants whilst they are in occupation. However sometimes this is not 
possible when a tenancy ends early, for example if they become insolvent. 
Provision for such eventualities has not been included in this plan property 
reserves would be used to cover this eventuality. 

17. Pro-active inspections of tenanted buildings are prioritised to ensure tenants 
are complying with their maintenance and repairing obligations when they are 
in occupation which will reduce the risk of dilapidation costs falling to the 
Council upon lease expiry. During COVID-19 it has not been possible to carry 
out as many site surveys as planned, increasing the risks of unforeseen 
events. However, the Council’s estate is monitored with regular visual site 
visits by the Direct Services and Local Area Services Teams. 

Financial Implications 

18. The updated capital cost of the proposed repairs and renewals plan is 
summarised in the table below. It has been updated and revised to reflect the 
effects of COVID 19 on the progress of the plan. 

19. Expenditure is forecast to increase in 2021/22 and onwards as spend delayed 
due to the impact of COVID 19 has been reprofiled into future years. It is 
anticipated that up to £1,000,000 of spend originally planned to be spent by 
23/24 will now be spent after this date. 

 

2019/20 

Actual 

£ 

2020/21 

Actual 

£ 

2021/22 

Forecast 

£ 

2022/23 

Forecast 

£ 

2023/24 

Forecast 

£ 

Operational 
Buildings 

192,000 344,000 404,000 1,097,000 250,000 

Commercial 
15,000 125,000 403,000 818,000 530,000 

90



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

 

  

20. Operational buildings do not provide the Council with a direct income source, 
but instead ensure that the Council can continue to provide services. 
Expenditure on operational buildings related to repairs and renewals will, as 
has historically been the case, be funded through borrowing. The revenue 
implication of the forecast 2021/22 expenditure is £46,000 per annum. 

21. The repairs and renewals expenditure on Commercial Properties will be 
funded initially from borrowing with the associated borrowing costs being 
funded from income brought into the Council through rents and service 
charges. Although expenditure will be funded through borrowing, for some 
properties there may be reserves that can be utilised or the cost of works 
recovered from tenants through the service charge for the building. This will be 
monitored on a case-by-case basis and decisions delegated to the Chief 
Finance Officer and Lead Asset Manager to determine the most appropriate 
form of funding, to deliver best value for money for the Council.  

22. To remain prudent, the Council will be using an asset life that matches the 
expenditure incurred. The Council would usually use 50 years for expenditure 
on buildings. It is noted that this expenditure will not extend the life of the 
Council’s property portfolio over its current 50-year life span, and therefore this 
borrowing should be repaid over a shorter life, to better fit the likelihood that 
similar works may need to be carried out again in the future. 

23. Expenditure will be carefully programmed to ensure minimal disruption to any 
operations or business tenants, and to maximise income generation. Liability 
for dilapidations to the commercial portfolio will also be monitored, ensuring 
the Council works in a pro-active manner to minimise any potential costs 
should dilapidation claims arise. 

24. The Repairs and Renewals 5-year plan will continue to be revisited annually 
and developed into a rolling programme, with an updated report being brought 
for approval to Cabinet every 5 years the next being 2024/25. 

Risk Assessment 

25. This report outlines the progress to date against the approved Repairs and 
Renewals plan which aims to replace defective fabric and equipment with up-
to-date technology and comply with building regulations, statutory and industry 
standards.  

26. If the Council fails to maintain its property portfolio it risks financial implications 
due to the risk of increased or unforeseen costs and decreased revenue return 
from rental. Surveys and works to date have ensured that these risks are 
being managed and mitigated where appropriate. 

Buildings 

Total 207,000 469,000 807,000 1,915,000 780,000 

91



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

27. To progress the Climate Change Strategy and support Decarbonisation the 
Council is proactively looking at alternative fuel systems when replacing 
heating and cooling systems and replacing building fabric with high 
performance materials to improve thermal performance. Where possible 
materials and resources are sourced from local suppliers and manufacturers.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

28. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or 
fostering good relations between different people. A full Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because while there is some 
equalities impact, it is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA at this point. 

Conclusion 

29. This report demonstrates the progress to date against the Repairs and 
Renewals Plan 2019/20-2023/24. The report explains the inevitable impacts 
the Covid-19 pandemic has had on the delivery of the plan and the steps 
taken to mitigate risks and reprioritise work as appropriate.  

 

 
NIGEL STEPHENS 

LEAD BUILDING SURVEYOR 
 
Date: 21 January 2022 
Contact Officer: Nigel Stephens  
Tel No: 8423 
e-mail: nigel.stephens@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* List Background Papers None. 
 

92



R & R Plan of works updated 2022 April 20/21

Estimated 

budget for 

2022/23
Eastleigh Market Portacabin toilets and power 10,000                    

Itchen Valley Country Park FRA and Infrastructure 250,000                 

The Sidings structural issues 40,000                    

Black Horse House lobby and toilet refurbishment 60,000                    

Channon Retail Park FRA remedials 30,000                    

Nightingale Shopping Parade external fixtures -                          

Various Garage works/demolish 20,000                    

Places contigent Car park etc -                          

Southampton Road Units 1-3 Externals/EPC issues 19,000                    

Unit 2 Swan Centre Internals 15,000                    

Brookwood Lodge externals -                          

Eastleigh House remedials/sign off 100,000                 

The Point Major Works Refurbish, FRA and Boilers 50,000                    

Energy Youth Centre Externals 40,000                    

Earth Bar Parking Tarmac 14,000                    

Eastleigh Depot Major Works Various 370,000                 

The Hub including toilet block 15,000                    

(Pavilion in the Park) Renov -                          

Public Convenience, The Precinct Chandlers Ford Renov -                          

Public Convenience, Upper Market Street Eastleigh Remodel -                          CIP

Wessex House FRA, DB, Boilers, Water Tank 490,000                 

Leigh Road Bandstand renovation 17,000                    

Y Zone Youth Centre Fair Oak 2 Knowle Park Lane FRA Doors 5,000                      

Berry Theatre Remedials 25,000                    

Dutton Lane Major works Remedials 50,000                    

101 leigh Road Externals 5,000                      

Shakespeare Business Centre 50,000                    

Supermarket Market Street ( Above offices) Renov 60,000                    
Grange Park 30,000                    

Energy Audits and EPC upgrades >E 150,000                 

Combined total to April 2023 including contigency and fees 1,915,000              

131/01/2022

93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 8 February 2022  

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND PLAN UPDATE 

Report of the Lead Asset Manager 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Audit and Resources Committee note the progress 
against the Asset Management Strategy 2020-25 and Asset Management Plan 
2021/22 as set out in Appendix 1. 
 

Summary 
 
The Council owns a successful commercial property portfolio that is forecast to deliver a 
net revenue surplus to the Council of £9m in 2021/22 as well as owning multiple 
operational buildings allowing the Council to deliver a wide range of front-line services and 
community benefits.   
 
Cabinet approved the Asset Management Strategy 2020-25 and agreed a set of key 
actions for delivery in 2020-21 in April 2020. Due to the Covid 19 pandemic a number of 
these were rolled forward to the Asset Management Plan 2021-22 to enable staff to 
increase debt management focus on the Council’s property portfolio. This report provides 
progress updates on delivery of each action, as set out in Appendix 1. 

 
Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government Act 1972.  
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e., the Local Authority's general power of 
competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The Asset Management Plan 2021-22 contains actions aligned to delivery of 
the Asset Management Strategy 2020-25 and objectives of the Corporate Plan 
2020-25. 
 

2. Income generated by the Council’s Property Portfolio helps to support delivery 
of strategic objectives set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-2025 and 
wider corporate objectives, including social and physical regeneration, 
economic development and, safeguarding strategic influence and future 
development opportunities. 

95

Agenda Item 10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Background 

3. Cabinet approved the Asset Management Strategy 2020-25 and agreed a set 
of key actions for delivery in 2020-21. In April 2020, due to the Covid 19 
pandemic a number of these were rolled forward to the Asset Management 
Plan 2021-22 to enable staff to increase debt management focus of the 
Council’s property portfolio. This report provides progress updates on delivery 
of each action, as set out in Appendix 1. 
 

4. Actions are generated during the annual planning cycle from discussions with 
Cabinet members and senior staff, facilitated by the Strategic Planning and 
Development Team. 

Update on Asset Management Plan 2021-22 

5. This report provides an update on the progress made against the Asset 
Management Plan 2021-22 as shown in Appendix 1. In many cases the action 
is due to be actioned and completed across the whole year or into 2022-23. 

Financial Implications 

6. The Asset Management Strategy 2020-25 and Asset Management Plan 2021-
22 is one of the key elements in delivering the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan. 

7. The present Covid-19 pandemic led to ongoing difficulties for some tenants in 
payment of rent. The Asset Management team continue to work closely with 
the Finance and Economy teams with agreed approaches to providing 
support. 

8. There has been an increased focus on debt management ensuring arrears of 
rent and other payments are kept to a minimum, payment plans are adhered 
to and regular communications maintained.  

Risk Assessment 

9. Property is a riskier asset than some investment classes due to its physical 
characteristics which make the asset less liquid. As with all investment types, 
the expected return increases with the level of risk. In relation to the property 
market, rental and capital values can fluctuate upwards or downwards over 
time according to the market and wider economic circumstances. Due to these 
risks, property is a long-term investment where it is expected to be held for 5 
to 10 years or more.  

10. The main risks are reputational concerning the failure to progress 
transactions, financial relating to fluctuations in property capital and rental 
values due to market or wider economic circumstances including the impacts 
of the Covid 19 pandemic, financial failure of tenants, a lack of suitable 
investments or potential occupiers for vacant properties. 

96



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

11. These risks are managed at portfolio and asset levels through focussed 
proactive asset management and are kept under review and mitigated as far 
as possible by the in-house specialist Asset Management team with support 
from external consultants as required. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

12. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is a 
report dealing with internal or procedural matters only. 

13. Therefore, it is considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not 
need to be addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not 
been carried out. 

 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

14. The Asset Management Strategy 2020-25 and Asset Management Action Plan 
2021-22 aim to have a positive carbon impact due to the specific focus during 
the review of assets to reduce the carbon footprint of the property portfolio as 
part of the maintenance and repairs plans and Capital projects for properties 
and actions that are taken as a result. 

 

Conclusion 

15. This report demonstrates the progress to date against the Asset Management 
Strategy and Action Plan 2021-22 in Appendix 1 for Councillors to note and 
provide any comments. 

LIZ SUATT 
LEAD ASSET MANAGER 

 
Date: 20 January 2022 
Contact Officer: Liz Suatt  
Tel No: 02380 680 3856 
e-mail: liz.suatt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* List Background Papers or state None. 
 

97



This page is intentionally left blank



ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 2021-22 RAG Status: Green – on target; Amber – within tolerance; Red – needs action. 

Theme Outcome Action / activity Measure By when Comments RAG Status 

Prosperous 
Place 

Maximise return 
on property 
portfolio  

Liaison with tenants 
Put payment plans in 
place 
 
Review of lease events 
due in 2020-21 
 
 
Focus on measures to re-
let vacant 
accommodation 
 
 
Pro-active focus on 
managing forthcoming 
lease events due in 2021-
22 

 

Legal documents in place 
and tenants keeping to 
payment plans 
 
Number of lease and 
licence renewals reviewed 
or actioned 
 
Number of properties 
being marketed and new 
lettings secured to reduce 
the number of voids 
 
Number of lease renewals 
and rent reviews initiated, 
terms agreed and/or 
completed 

2021-23 Regular communications maintained with 
tenants. Payment plans in place and being 
followed to clear arrears. 
Some delays in reviewing lease events due to 
impact of Covid on property portfolio and staff 
vacancies and absence; plan in place for major 
lease events with in-house team and support 
from external consultants. 
Vacant properties being marketed where ready 
to relet. The in- house teams continue to focus 
on measures to relet vacant accommodation 
and minimise void costs. Number of asset 
reviews completed and business cases being 
developed for emerging capital projects. 

Amber 

Prosperous 
Place 

Statutory 
compliance 

Develop new statutory 
compliance plan 
Develop programme for 
investment  

Plan complete 
 
Planned preventative 
maintenance plans in 
place  

Ongoing New model set up for Operational properties 
and vacant properties with planned 
preventative maintenance in place. 
Programme in place to ensure tenants meet 
responsibilities and properties are compliant 

Green 

Prosperous 
Place 

The property 
portfolio is fit for 
purpose and 
attracts 
commercial 
rents where 
appropriate 

Implement repairs and 
renewal programme 

Deliver programme 
priorities for 2021/22 
 
 

2021-22 Proceeding as planned, detail provided in 
Repairs and Renewals update report  

Green 

Prosperous 
Place 

Improve 
efficiency of 
monitoring and 
property 
management of 
property 

Ensure efficient property 
data management system 
is in place 

Review of current data 
complete including data 
cleansing. 
Accessible single property 
data management system 
tested and operational. 

2020-2023  Some delays with progress due to staff 
focusing on the response to the impact of 
Covid, however work has started again to 
review and cleanse data held and review 
alternative property data management 
solutions. 

Amber 

99



portfolio   

Prosperous 
Place 

Regenerate 
Eastleigh town 
and local centres 

Strategic acquisitions to 
support delivery of 
rationalisation around 
former Budgens site in 
Hedge End 

Number of strategic 
acquisitions complete in 
Hedge End and Eastleigh 

Ongoing Progressing as planned Green 

Prosperous 
Place 

One Public 
Estate 
Programme 

Work collaboratively with 
Public Estate Partners to 
identify opportunities to 
support delivery 
strategies and Estate 
needs eg. joint ventures, 
sharing of surplus space 

Partnerships in place 
Opportunities identified 
for joint ventures or 
lettings of vacant or 
surplus space to Public 
sector organisations  
 

Ongoing Eastleigh Southern Parish Partnership set up 
and Terms of Reference agreed, project team 
set up to explore and progress opportunities. 
 

Green 

Green 
Borough 

All properties 
meet 
environmental 
standards 

Recruit Energy Manager 
Carry out energy 
efficiency surveys 
Identify opportunities to 
improve energy efficiency 
in existing assets  

Energy Manager in post 
 
Opportunities identified 
for emerging programme 
pipeline 

2021-22 Energy Manager recruited 
Tendered for specialist consultants to 
undertake energy audits on properties 
identified to support decarbonisation, tenders 
under review prior to appointing consultant. 
Installation of public Electric Vehicle charging 
points progressing on commercial portfolio 
sites 
Work progressing with Building Surveyors to 
ensure properties remain compliant with 
Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards 

Green 

Regeneration Project Support Provide specialist 
knowledge and input to 
Community Projects & 
Housing Programme 

Achieve project 
milestones  
 
 
 

2021-22 Supporting as required across projects 
delivered by Project Management team 
(currently 26) 

Green 

Housing 
 

Strategic 
acquisitions and 
disposals 

Identify and seek to 
acquire property to 
support delivery of 
Housing programmes 

Deliver programme 
priorities for 2021-22 
Properties identified to 
support Housing delivery. 

2021-22 Completion of acquisition of empty neglected 
residential property to bring back into use; 
works completed to secure and clear garden to 
improve appearance for neighbours. 

Green 

Health & 
Wellbeing 

Community 
Asset 
Programme 

Provide specialist 
property advice and 
support to improve 
efficiency in the 

Detailed input into review 
and updating of CAT policy 
and improvements 
identified to process. 

2021-22 Community Asset Transfer policy reviewed and 
updated. 
Working with the Community Asset Board and 
other eservice areas including Local Areas, 

Amber 

100



 

Community Asset transfer 
process 

Number of asset transfers 
actioned or transferred 

Streetscene and Legal on priority Asset 
transfers, progressing in line with emerging 
programme. There is a plan in place to ensure 
capacity within in-house teams with support 
from external consultants where required. 

101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE ACTION LIST 

 
MEETING 

DATE 
ITEM TITLE RECOMMENDATION/ACTION CONTACT 

OFFICER/ 
COMMITTEE 

TARGET 
DATE/ 

COMPLETED 

UPDATES 

10/03/2020 6. Internal Audit 
Charter 2020/21 

Review the possibility of obtaining an 
external assessment of compliance with the 
Standards through a reciprocal arrangement 
with another Local Authority. 

Jo Cassar  A reciprocal arrangement 
with another Local 
Authority is currently not 
possible due to resource 
capacity. The Chief 
Internal Auditor (Acting) 
has obtained a 
reasonable quote from a 
specialist company to 
carry out this assessment 
which has come in at 
£2450.00 (There is no 
VAT). External 
Assessment is booked 
with this company for the 
week commencing 14th 
March. 

 7.      

 8.      

 

103

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN: February 2022 to March 2022 

 
This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken. 
 
A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to: 
 
(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 

larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or 
 
(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 

Borough of Eastleigh. 
 
The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework. 
 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

17 February 2022 
 

Yes 

 
Capital and Treasury Strategy  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

To consider and approve the 
Capital and Treasury 
Strategy. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
2022 - 2023 Borough Council 
Budget  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

To consider and recommend 
the 2022 – 2023 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval. 

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director /  
 

Yes 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
comment on and approve 
the Borough Council’s 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 105

A
genda Item

 13



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

2 

Yes 

 
Corporate Action Plan (CAP) 
22/23  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

Approval of the Council's key 
corporate actions for 
2022/23. 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Write Off Irrecoverable Debts  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee 
 

To approve the write-off of 
irrecoverable debts. 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Sustainable Drainage Systems 
Supplementary Planning 
Document (SuDS SPD)  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the draft 
Sustainable Drainage 
Systems Supplementary 
Planning Document (SuDS 
SPD) ahead of public 
consultation. 

Dawn Heppell /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   17 Feb 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager /  
 

24 March 2022 
 

106



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

3 

Yes 

 
Equalities Strategy and Action 
Plan 2022-2025  
 

Cabinet   24 Mar 2022   
 

The Council has legal duties 
and a community leadership 
role in the exercise of its 
functions to address 
discrimination, promote 
genuine equal opportunities 
and foster good relations 
between different 
communities in Eastleigh 
Borough. The Strategy and 
Action Plan proposes a plan 
to improve consideration of 
equalities in the workforce, 
services and projects of the 
Council. 

Andrew 
Saunders, 
Strategy 
Development 
Senior Specialist 
/  
 

Yes 

 
Freeport Full Business Case  
 

Cabinet   24 Mar 2022   
 

The Freeport site has 
progressed to submitting the 
Full Business Case to 
Government for approval 
and creation of the Freeport 
Tax Sites. This report details 
key aspects of the business 
case and the Council’s 
obligations from it. 

Andy Smith, 
Executive Head 
of Finance and 
Housing 
Programme 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer), 
Andy Grandfield, 
Executive Head 
of Planning and 
Economy /  
 

107



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

4 

Yes 

 
Tree Strategy  
 

Cabinet   24 Mar 2022  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel 
 

The Strategy outlines the 
Council’s current activities 
relating to trees, provides a 
framework to underpin these 
activities and sets the 
Council’s key principles in 
relation to trees.  

Mike Culver, 
Strategy 
Development 
Senior Specialist 
/  
 

Yes 

 
ELAC Allotment Transfers  
 

Cabinet   24 Mar 2022   
 

Report detailing the statutory 
and non-statutory allotments 
to be transferred on 1st April 
2022 as part of the creation 
of two new parish councils – 
Boyatt Wood Parish and 
Eastleigh Parish. 

Nicola Treeby /  
 

Yes 

 
Response to Hampshire County 
Council consultation on 
application to extract gravel at 
former Hamble Airfield  
 

Cabinet   24 Mar 2022   
 

This report seeks formal 
approval of the Council’s 
response to the HCC 
consultation as the planning 
authority in conjunction with 
the response agreed at BHH 
LAC on 3rd March. 

Diccon Bright, 
Strategic 
Planning 
Manager /  
 

Yes 

 
Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval  
 

Cabinet   24 Mar 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP). 

 /  
 

Yes 

 
Property Transactions  
 

Cabinet   24 Mar 2022   
 

To consider and approve 
property transactions. 

 /  
 

 
 
FOOTNOTES: 
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken. 

108



 

 

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY 

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN 

PRE-DECISION 
SCRUTINY 

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member 

5 

Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting. 
 
Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Democratic Services Manager 
Publication Date: 31 January 2022 
 

109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 

AS AT January 2022 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item for Consideration Annual or  
Standing 
item 

Staff/Member 
Attendance 

    

To Be Tabled Hampshire Community Bank  Sarah King 

    

8 February 
2022 

   

 Repairs and Renewals Report  Nigel Stephens 

 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring 
Statement (Qtr 3) 

 Lisa Smy 

 Asset Management Strategy Annual L Suatt 

 Capital and Treasury Management 
Strategy 

 Tom Andrews 

 Regulation of Investigating Powers 
Policy 

 Legal Services 

 Bad Debt Report  Tom Andrews/ 
Mark Reed 

 Verbal Updates from 
SRMG/PEG/Housing Group 

All Mtgs Members 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

8 March 2022    

 Verbal Updates from SRMG All Mtgs Members 

 Internal Audit Charter 2022/23  Lisa Smy 

 Internal Audit Strategic Plan 2022/23  Lisa Smy 

 Staffing Report Annual Shirley Robbins 
Sukhi Aujla 

 Action Plan 
 

  

 Forward Plan   

 A&R Work Programme   

    

 

111

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Regulation of Investigating Powers Policy
	6 Write Off Of Irrecoverable Debts 2020/21
	7 Capital and Treasury Management Strategy
	Appendix1CapitalStrategy
	Appendix1ACIPProgramme
	Appendix1BProjectMap
	Appendix2TreasuryManagementStrategy
	Appendix2AMRPStatement
	Appendix2BPrudentialIndicators
	Appendix3InvestmentStrategy2223
	Appendix3AInvestmentIndicators

	8 Internal Audit Quarterly Monitoring Statement (Qtr3)
	9 Repairs and Renewals Report
	Appendix 1 for Repair and Renewal Plan 201920 - 202324 Update 2022

	10 Asset Management Strategy
	AssetManagementPlan202122 - Appendix 1

	12 Action List
	13 Cabinet Forward Plan
	14 A&R Work Programme

